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Application has been made to the Autorité des marchés financiers (the "AMF") in France for approval of this Base Prospectus in its capacity as competent
authority pursuant to Article 212-2 of its Réglement Général which implements the Directive 2003/71/EC of 4 November 2003 (as amended by Directive
2010/73/EC (except as otherwise specified herein) (the "2010 PD Amending Directive") on the prospectus to be published when securities are offered to
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in respect of the Notes will be made without deduction for or on account of withholding taxes imposed by any relevant jurisdiction, subject as provided in
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! Which for the avoidance of doubt only refers to BNP Paribas S.A. and not the Group



In the case of Notes issued by BNPP B.V. and guaranteed by BNPP, if the applicable Final Terms specify that Condition 6(b)(ii) is applicable to the Notes,
neither the Issuer or, as applicable, the Guarantor is obliged to gross up any payments in respect of the Notes and shall not be liable for or otherwise
obliged to pay any tax, duty, withholding or other payment which may arise as a result of the ownership, transfer, presentation and surrender for payment,
or enforcement of any Note and all payments made by the Issuer or, as applicable, the Guarantor shall be made subject to any such tax, duty, withholding

or other payment which may be required to be made, paid, withheld or deducted.



Each issue of Bearer Notes will be represented on issue by a temporary global note in bearer form (each a "Temporary Global Note") or a permanent
global note in bearer form (each a "Permanent Global Note"). If a Global Note in bearer form is stated in the applicable Final Terms to be issued in new
global note ("NGN") form such Global Note will be delivered on or prior to the original issue date of the Tranche to a common safekeeper (the "Common
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Global Notes in bearer form which are not issued in NGN form ("Classic Global Notes" or "CGNs") will be deposited on the issue date with a common
depositary on behalf of Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg (the "Common Depositary").

Each issue of Registered Notes will initially be represented by one or more registered Global Notes.
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Each of BNPP B.V. (in respect of itself) and BNPP (in respect of itself and BNPP B.V.) accepts
responsibility for the information contained in this Base Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge of
each of BNPP B.V. and BNPP (who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case),
the information contained herein is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to
affect the import of such information.

This Document is to be read in conjunction with all documents which are incorporated herein by
reference as described in "Documents Incorporated by Reference" below. This Document shall be
read and construed on the basis that such documents are so incorporated and form part of this
Document.

Information contained in this Document which is sourced from a third party has been accurately
reproduced and, as far as each Issuer is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by
the relevant third party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information
inaccurate or misleading. Each Issuer has also identified the source(s) of such information The
applicable Final Terms will (if applicable) specify the nature of the responsibility taken by the relevant
Issuer and, if applicable, the Guarantor for the information relating to the underlying asset, index or
other item(s) to which the Notes relate.

This Document (together with supplements to this Document from time to time (each a "Supplement”
and together the "Supplements”) comprises a base prospectus for the purposes of (i) Article 5.4 of
Directive 2003/71/EC (the "Prospectus Directive") as amended (including the amendments made by
Directive 2010/73/EU (the "2010 PD Amending Directive") to the extent that such amendments have
been implemented in a Member State of the European Economic Area) and (ii) the relevant
implementing measures in France and, in each case, for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Issuers. In relation to each separate issue of Notes, the final offer price and the amount of such
Notes will be determined by the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealers in accordance with prevailing
market conditions at the time of the issue of the Notes and will be set out in the relevant Final Terms.

Subject as provided in the applicable Final Terms, the only persons authorised to use this Document
in connection with an offer of Notes are the persons named in the applicable Final Terms as the
relevant Dealer or the Managers and the persons named in or identifiable following the applicable
Final Terms as the Financial Intermediaries, as the case may be.

The Dealers have not separately verified the information contained herein. Accordingly, no
representation, warranty or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility is accepted
by the Dealers as to the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in this Document or
any other information provided by BNPP B.V. and/or the Bank in connection with the Programme or
the Notes. The Dealers accept no liability in relation to the information contained in this Document or
any other information provided by BNPP B.V. and/or the Bank in connection with the Programme or
the Notes.

No person has been authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained
in or not consistent with this Document or any further information supplied in connection with the
Programme or the Notes and, if given or made, such information or representation must not be relied
upon as having been authorised by BNPP B.V. and/or BNPP or any of the Dealers.

In connection with the issue and sale of Notes, none of BNPP B.V., BNPP and/or their affiliates will,
unless agreed to the contrary in writing, act as a financial adviser to any Noteholder.

Neither this Document nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the
Notes is intended to provide the basis of any credit or other evaluation and should not be considered
as recommendations by BNPP B.V. and/or BNPP or any of the Dealers that any recipient of this
Document or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme should purchase any
of the Notes. Each investor contemplating purchasing any of the Notes should make its own
independent investigation of the financial condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the
creditworthiness, of the relevant Issuer and where the relevant Issuer is BNPP B.V., the Bank. Neither
this Document nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Notes
constitutes an offer or invitation by or on behalf of BNPP B.V. and/or BNPP or any of the Dealers to
any person to subscribe for or to purchase any of the Notes.



The delivery of this Document does not at any time imply that the information contained herein
concerning BNPP B.V. and/or BNPP is correct at any time subsequent to the date of this Document or
that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme or the Notes is correct as of any
time subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing the same. The Dealers expressly
do not undertake to review the financial condition or affairs of BNPP B.V. and/or BNPP during the life
of the Programme. Prospective investors should review, inter alia, the most recently published audited
annual non-consolidated financial statements of BNPP B.V. and/or the most recently published
audited annual consolidated financial statements and unaudited semi-annual interim consolidated
financial statements of BNPP, when deciding whether or not to purchase any of the Notes.

This Document does not constitute, and may not be used for or in connection with, an offer to any
person to whom it is unlawful to make such offer or a solicitation by anyone not authorised so to act.

The distribution of this Document and the offer or sale of the Notes may be restricted by law in certain
jurisdictions. Persons into whose possession this Document or any Notes come must inform
themselves about, and observe, any such restrictions. In particular, there are restrictions on the
distribution of this Document and the offer or sale of the Notes in the European Economic Area
("EEA") (and certain member states thereof), Japan and the United States (see "Subscription and
Sale" below).

The Notes and Guarantee have not been and will not be registered under the United States Securities
Act of 1933, as amended (the "Securities Act"), or with any securities regulatory authority of any
state or jurisdiction of the United States, and the Notes may include Bearer Notes that are subject to
U.S. tax law requirements. Subject to certain exceptions, Notes may not be offered, sold or, in the
case of Bearer Notes, delivered within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, U.S.
persons, as defined in Regulation S under the Securities Act ("Regulation S") (see "Subscription and
Sale" below).

This Document has been prepared on the basis that, except to the extent sub-paragraph (ii) below
may apply, any offer of Notes in any Member State of the European Economic Area which has
implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a "Relevant Member State") will be made pursuant to
an exemption under the Prospectus Directive, as implemented in that Relevant Member State, from
the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of Notes. Accordingly any person making or
intending to make an offer in that Relevant Member State of Notes which are the subject of an
offering contemplated in this Document as completed by final terms in relation to the offer of those
Notes may only do so (i) in circumstances in which no obligation arises for the Issuer or any Dealer to
publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus Directive or supplement a prospectus
pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive, in each case, in relation to such offer, or (ii) if a
prospectus for such offer has been approved by the competent authority in that Relevant Member
State or, where appropriate, approved in another Relevant Member State and notified to the
competent authority in that Relevant Member State and (in either case) published, all in accordance
with the Prospectus Directive, provided that any such prospectus has subsequently has been
completed by final terms which specify that offers may be made other than pursuant to Article 3(2) of
the Prospectus Directive in that Relevant Member State, such offer is made in the period beginning
and ending on the dates specified for such purpose in such prospectus or final terms, as applicable
and the Issuer has consented in writing to its use for the purpose of such offer. Except to the extent
sub-paragraph (ii) above may apply, neither the Issuer nor any Dealer have authorised, nor do they
authorise, the making of any offer of Notes in circumstances in which an obligation arises for the
Issuer or any Dealer to publish or supplement a prospectus for such offer.

IN CONNECTION WITH THE ISSUE OF ANY TRANCHE (AS DEFINED IN "TERMS AND
CONDITIONS OF THE NOTES" BELOW) OF NOTES, THE DEALER OR DEALERS (IF ANY)
NAMED AS THE STABILISING MANAGER(S) (THE "STABILISING MANAGER(S)") (OR
PERSONS ACTING ON BEHALF OF ANY STABILISING MANAGER(S)) IN THE APPLICABLE
FINAL TERMS MAY OVER-ALLOT NOTES OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS WITH A VIEW TO
SUPPORTING THE MARKET PRICE OF THE NOTES AT A LEVEL HIGHER THAN THAT WHICH
MIGHT OTHERWISE PREVAIL. HOWEVER, THERE IS NO ASSURANCE THAT THE
STABILISING MANAGER(S) (OR PERSONS ACTING ON BEHALF OF A STABILISING
MANAGER) WILL UNDERTAKE STABILISATION ACTION. ANY STABILISATION ACTION MAY
BEGIN ON OR AFTER THE DATE ON WHICH ADEQUATE PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OF THE FINAL



TERMS OF THE OFFER OF THE RELEVANT TRANCHE OF NOTES IS MADE AND, IF BEGUN,
MAY BE ENDED AT ANY TIME, BUT IT MUST END NO LATER THAN THE EARLIER OF 30 DAYS
AFTER THE ISSUE DATE OF THE RELEVANT TRANCHE AND 60 DAYS AFTER THE DATE OF
THE ALLOTMENT OF THE RELEVANT TRANCHE. ANY STABILISATION ACTION OR OVER-
ALLOTMENT SHALL BE CONDUCTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH ALL APPLICABLE LAWS AND
RULES.

In this Document, references to "euro", "EURO", "Euro”, "EUR" and "€" refer to the currency
introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union pursuant to the
Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union and as amended by the Treaty of Amsterdam,
references to "$", "U.S.$" and "U.S. dollars" are to United States dollars, references to "cents" are to
United States cents, references to "yen" and "¥" are to Japanese yen, references to "sterling" and "£"
are to pounds sterling and references to "CHF" are to Swiss francs.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The sections of this Document from, and including "BNP Paribas Group" to, but excluding, "Taxation"
below contain forward-looking statements. BNP Paribas and the BNP Paribas Group (being BNP
Paribas together with its consolidated subsidiaries, the "Group") may also make forward-looking
statements in their audited annual financial statements, in their interim financial statements, in their
offering circulars, in press releases and other written materials and in oral statements made by their
officers, directors or employees to third parties. Statements that are not historical facts, including
statements about the Bank's and/or Group's beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements.
These statements are based on current plans, estimates and projections, and therefore undue
reliance should not be placed on them. Forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are
made, and the Bank and the Group undertake no obligation to update publicly any of them in light of
new information or future events.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Most of the financial data presented or incorporated by reference in this Base Prospectus is
presented in euros.

BNP Paribas consolidated financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2009 and
31 December 2010 have been prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standards
("IFRS") as adopted by the European Union. The Group's fiscal year ends on 31 December and
references in the information statement dated 7 June 2011 (the "Information Statement") to any
specific fiscal year are to the twelve-month period ended 31 December of such year.

The financial statements for the years ended 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010 of BNP
Paribas Arbitrage Issuance B.V. were prepared in accordance with Dutch generally accepted
accounting principles.

Due to rounding, the numbers presented or incorporated by reference throughout this Document or
the Information Statement may not add up precisely, and percentages may not reflect precisely
absolute figures.
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SUMMARY

The following paragraph is to be read as an introduction to the Summary if the relevant
Member State has not implemented the changes to the Summary requirements under the 2010
PD Amending Directive:

This summary must be read as an introduction to this Document. Any decision to invest in any Notes
should be based on a consideration of this Document as a whole, including any documents
incorporated by reference. No civil liability will attach to any persons responsible for the prospectus in
any Member State of the European Economic Area (an "EEA State") in respect of this Summary
unless it is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of this
Document. Where a claim relating to information contained in this Document is brought before a court
in a Member State of a EEA State, the plaintiff may, under the national legislation of the EEA State
where the claim is brought, be required to bear the costs of translating this Document before the legal
proceedings are initiated.

The following paragraph is to be read as an introduction to the Summary if the relevant
Member State has implemented the changes to the Summary requirements under the 2010 PD
Amending Directive:

This summary must be read as an introduction to this Document and any decision to invest in the
Notes should be based on a consideration of this Document as a whole, including any documents
incorporated by reference. Following the implementation of the relevant provisions of the Prospectus
Directive (Directive 2003/71/EC, as amended by Directive 2010/73/EU) in each Member State of the
European Economic Area (an "EEA State"), no civil liability will attach to the Issuer in any such
Member State solely on the basis of this summary, including any translation thereof, unless it is
misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of this Document or it
does not provide, when read together with the other parts of this Document, key information in order
to aid investors when considering whether to invest in the Notes. Where a claim relating to the
information contained in this Document is brought before a court in an EEA State, the plaintiff may,
under the national legislation of the EEA State where the claim is brought, be required to bear the
costs of translating this Document before the legal proceedings are initiated.

Words and expressions defined in "Form of the Notes" and "Terms and Conditions of the Notes"
below and in the applicable Final Terms shall have the same meanings in this summary.

| — Key information relating to the Issuers
Description of BNPP B.V. 1) Key information on BNPP B.V.:

BNPP B.V. is a private company with limited liability under
Dutch law whose purpose and principal objectives are to issue
and acquire financial instruments of any nature and to enter
into related agreements for the account of various entities
within the Group.

2) Share capital as of 31 December 2010:

Its share capital as of 31 December 2010 amounts to EUR
225,000 divided into 225,000 shares of EUR 1 each.

3) Selected key financial information:

In millions of EUR

31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Revenues 414,357 524,146
Net income, Group 28,537 36,953
share
Total balance 32,958,741,398 31,381,818,862
sheet
Shareholders’ 345,650 317,113



Description of BNPP

equity (Group
share)

1) Key information on BNPP:

BNPP is a French law société anonyme licensed as a bank.
BNPP and its consolidated subsidiaries (the Group) is a
European leading provider of banking and financial services
and has four domestic retail banking markets in Europe,
namely in Belgium, France, Italy and Luxembourg.

2) Share capital as of 31 December 2010:

EUR 2,397,320,312 represented by 1,198,660,156 shares of
EUR two nominal amount each.

3) Main activities and markets:
BNP Paribas holds key positions in its three activities:

. Retail Banking: includes branch networks (including in
Europe and the Mediterranean Basin) and specialised
financial services;

. Investment Solutions: provides a unique range of
solutions to meet all of the present and future needs of
institutional, corporate and retail investors including
asset management (BNP Paribas Investment
Partners), insurance (BNP Paribas Assurance), wealth
management (BNP Paribas Wealth Management),
savings and online brokerage (BNP Paribas Personal
Investors), securities services (BNP Paribas Securities
Services) and real estate services (BNP Paribas Real
Estate); and

o Corporate and Investment Banking (CIB): provides
essentially financing, advisory and capital markets
services. During 2010, CIB made a significant
contribution to the BNP Paribas Group’s activities and
revenues. The main objective of CIB is to assist the
clients in their investment and development strategies
and to provide global solutions to their needs in
financing, financial advice and risk management.

4) Selected key financial information:

In millions of EUR

31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Revenues 43,880 40,191
Cost of risk (4,802) (8,369)
Net income, Group 7,843 5,832
share
Common  Equity 9.2% 8.0%
Tier 1 Ratio
Tier 1 Ratio 11.4% 10.1%
Total consolidated 1,998,158 2,057,698
balance sheet
Consolidated loans 684,686 678,766



Risk Factors relating to the
Issuers

and receivables
due from
customers

Consolidated items 580,913 604,903
due to customers

Shareholders’ 74,632 69,501
equity (Group
share)

There are certain factors that may affect each Issuer's ability to
fulfil its obligations under the Notes issued under the
Programme and (where applicable) the Guarantor's obligations
under the Guarantee.

Nine main categories of risks are inherent in BNPP's activities:

J Credit and counterparty Risk;

. Market Risk;

o Operational Risk (including compliance and
reputation risk);

. Asset-Liability Management Risk;

. Liquidity and Refinancing Risk;

° Insurance Subscription Risk;

. Break-even Risk (i.e. risk of incurring an

operating loss due to a change in the
economic environment leading to a decline in
revenue coupled with insufficient cost-

elasticity);
. Strategy Risk; and
. Concentration Risk.

Difficult market and economic conditions could in the future
have a material adverse effect on the operating environment
for financial institutions and on the BNPP’s financial condition,
results of operations and cost of risk.

The recent financial crisis has resulted, and is likely to continue
to result, in more restrictive regulation of the financial services
industry, which could have a material adverse effect on
BNPP’s business, financial condition and results of operations.

A number of the exceptional measures taken by governments,
central banks and regulators to remedy the financial crisis,
stabilize financial markets and bolster financial institutions
have recently been or will soon be completed or stopped,
which, given the currently fragile economic recovery, could
adversely affect operating conditions for banks.

A substantial increase in new provisions or a shortfall in the
level of previously recorded provisions could adversely affect
BNPP'’s results of operations and financial condition.

BNPP may incur significant losses on its trading and
investment activities due to market fluctuations and volatility.

BNPP may generate lower revenues from brokerage and other
commission and fee-based businesses during market
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Risk Factors relating to the Notes

downturns.

Protracted market declines can reduce liquidity in the markets,
making it harder to sell assets, possibly leading to material
losses.

Significant interest rate changes could adversely affect BNPP’s
revenues or profitability.

The soundness and conduct of other financial institutions and
market participants could adversely affect BNPP.

BNPP’s competitive position could be harmed if its reputation
is damaged.

An interruption or a breach of BNPP’s information systems
may result in lost business and other losses.

Unforeseen external events can interrupt BNPP’s operations
and cause substantial losses as well as additional costs.

BNPP is subject to extensive and evolving regulatory regimes
in the countries and regions in which it operates.

Notwithstanding BNPP’s risk management policies,
procedures and methods, it could still be exposed to
unidentified or unanticipated risks, which could lead to material
losses.

BNPP’s hedging strategies may not prevent losses.

BNPP’s external growth policy carries certain risks, particularly
with respect to the integration of acquired entities, and BNPP
may be unable to realise the benefits expected from its
acquisitions.

Intense competition, especially in France where it has the
largest single concentration of its businesses, could adversely
affect BNPP’s revenues and profitability.

The following risk factors relate to BNPP B.V. : BNPP B.V. is
an operating company. BNPP B.V.’s sole business is the
raising and borrowing of money by issuing securities or other
obligations. BNPP B.V. has, and will have, no assets other
than OTC contracts, cash and fees payable to it, or other
assets acquired by it, in each case in connection with the issue
of the Notes. The ability of BNPP B.V. to meet its obligations
under Notes issued by it will depend on the receipt by it of
payments under the relevant hedging agreements.
Consequently, BNPP B.V. is exposed to the ability of
counterparties in respect of such hedging agreements to
perform their obligations under such hedging agreements.

There are certain factors which are material for the purpose of
assessing the market risks associated with Notes issued under
the Programme. These are set out under "Risk Factors" and
include inter alia:

1) Financial risks
o the Notes may not be a suitable investment for
all investors

. risks relating to the liquidity/trading market for

11



the Notes

The Notes may not have an established
trading market when issued. There can be no
assurance of a secondary market for the
Notes on the stock exchange on which the
Notes are listed and admitted to trading or the
continued liquidity of such market if one
develops so that investors may be unable to
sell their Notes prior to the maturity date.

risks relating to the market value of the Notes

The market value of the Notes will be affected
by the creditworthiness of the Issuer, the
Guarantor and/or that of the Group and a
number of additional factors.

risks relating to exchange rates and exchange
controls

For investors whose financial activities are
denominated in a currency other than the
issue currency, there is a risk of fluctuation in
the rate of exchange between these two
currencies.

risks relating to credit ratings

The credit ratings assigned to the Notes may
not reflect the potential impact of all risks
related to the Notes or all other factors (such
as the creditworthiness of the Issuer) that may
affect the value of the Notes.

risks relating to yield
A holder's actual yield on the Notes may be
reduced from the stated yield by transaction

costs

risk relating to the subordination of
Subordinated Notes issued by BNPP

In addition, there are risks relating to the structure of
particular Series of Notes (including Notes subject to
optional redemption of the Issuer, Floating Rate Notes,
Zero Coupon Notes, Notes linked to an underlying
and, Subordinated Notes issued by BNPP).

Legal risks

risks relating to potential conflicts of interests
between the Issuer, the Guarantor, the



Calculation Agent or their respective affiliates
and the holders of the Notes

. risks relating to taxation (including changes to
the EU Savings Directive)

Potential purchasers and sellers of Notes
should be aware that they may be required to
pay taxes or other charges or duties in
accordance with the law and practices of the
jurisdiction where the Notes are transferred.

. risks relating to changes in legislation

The Terms and Conditions of the Notes are
based on English law in effect as at the date of
the Base Prospectus. No assurance can be
given as to the impact of any possible judicial
decision or change in English laws or its
interpretation after the date of the Base

Prospectus.
3) Risks related to an underlying
. Risks relating to an exposure to an underlying

Notes linked to an underlying give an
exposure to one or more index, share,
inflation index, commodity, fund, credit of a
reference entity, instrument admitted to
trading on a market, or exchange rate (each
an "Underlying Reference"). Any such Note
may include a risk equal to or higher (in
particular in case of leverage) than a direct
investment in the Underlying Reference.

. Specific risks relating to the nature of an
underlying

Each Underlying Reference includes specific risks which
expose the holder of the Notes to a partial or total loss of its
investment. For example, (i) the yield or redemption amount of
a Note linked to a share, a commodity or a fund may vary
according to the price of the relevant underlying and (ii) the
interests or redemption amount on a credit linked Note will be
negatively affected in case of occurrence of a credit event
affecting the relevant reference entity or a reference obligation
underlying such Note. These specific risks may also result
from an extraordinary event affecting the Underlying
Reference. Investors must understand the risk which may
affect the relevant Underlying Reference prior to investing in a
Note linked to an Underlying Reference.

In certain circumstances holders may lose the entire value of
their investment.
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Il — Key information relating to Notes issued under the Programme

Description of the Programme

Issuers

Guarantor (in the case of Notes
issued by BNPP B.V.)

Dealers (appointed in accordance
with the terms of the Programme
Agreement)

Calculation Agent

Principal Paying Agent and Fiscal
Agent

Other Paying Agent
Programme Maximum Amount
Currencies

Denomination(s)

Use of proceeds

Form of Notes

Terms and conditions of the
Notes

Programme for the issuance/admission to trading of debt
securities

BNP Paribas ("BNPP")
BNP Paribas Arbitrage Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V.")
BNP Paribas

For issues made by BNPP:

Barclays Capital PLC

BNP Paribas UK Limited

Citigroup Global Markets Limited

Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited
Goldman Sachs International

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

Merrill Lynch International

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc
UBS Limited

For issues made by BNPP B.V. :
BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.

BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch, or such
other calculation agent appointed in respect of a Series of
Notes

BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch

BNP Paribas Securities Services
€90,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies).
Notes may be denominated in any currency or currencies.

Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be
specified in the applicable Final Terms save that the minimum
denomination of each Note admitted to trading on a regulated
market within the European Economic Area or offered to the
public in a Member State of the European Economic Area will
be €1,000 (or, if the Notes are denominated in a currency other
than euro, the equivalent amount in such currency).

Unless other specified in the Final Terms, the net proceeds of
each issue of Notes will be used for the general financing
needs of the Group.

Notes will be issued outside the United States in either bearer
form or registered form

Notes may have any agreed maturity, be fully or partially paid-
up, and with an issue price equal to par or with a discount or
premium.

The Final Terms will specify the interest calculation basis
(fixed, floating or linked to an Underlying Reference) and the
redemption amounts. The redemption amount may be lower
than par.

14



Issue method

Status of the Senior Notes

Status of the Subordinated Notes

Events of Default

Notes linked to an Underlying
Reference

Notes may be issued on a syndicated or non syndicated basis.
The Notes will be issued in Series having one or more issue
dates and on terms otherwise identical within the same Series.
Each Series may be issued in Tranches on the same or
different issue dates. The specific terms of each Tranche will
be set out in the relevant Final Terms.

Senior Notes issued by BNPP and all Notes issued by BNPP
B.V. will constitute direct, unconditional, unsecured and
unsubordinated obligations of the relevant Issuer and will rank
pari passu among themselves and at least pari passu with all
its other direct, unconditional, unsecured and unsubordinated
indebtedness (save for statutorily preferred exceptions).

BNPP may issue Subordinated Notes which comprise Dated
Subordinated Notes and Undated Subordinated Notes. Such
Notes will be subordinated to the Senior Notes but will be paid
in priority to préts participatifs granted to BNPP and titres
participatifs issued by BNPP. Each category of Subordinated
Note is described in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes"
below.

Senior Notes benefit from provisions on events of default.

Principal and/or interest of the Notes may be linked to different
types of underlyings as specified below. The yield and/or the
redemption amount of such Notes will vary accordingly in
accordance with the performance of these underlyings and the
formula specified in the applicable Final Terms. This
performance may be negative. The terms and conditions of the
relevant Notes will specify the events which affect the
Underlying Reference whose occurrence will lead to
adjustments and/or early redemption of the Notes and the
terms of any such adjustments.

Index Linked Notes

Payments (in respect of principal or interest) in respect of
Index (e.g. the Eurostoxx 50 index) Linked Notes will be
calculated by reference to one or more Indices as set out in
the applicable Final Terms.

Share Linked Notes

Payments (in respect of principal or interest) in respect of
Share (e.g. the share of the company Klépierre) Linked Notes
will be calculated by reference to one or more shares, ADRs
and/or GDRs (together referred to herein as "Shares" and
each a "Share") as set out in the applicable Final Terms.
Share Linked Notes may also provide for redemption by
physical delivery of the Entitlement.

Inflation Linked Notes

Payments (in respect of principal or interest) in respect of
Inflation Linked Notes will be calculated by reference to one or
more inflation Indices as set out in the applicable Final Terms.

ETI Linked Notes

Payments (in respect of principal or interest) in respect of ETI
Linked Notes will be calculated by reference to interests in one
or more exchange traded instruments as set out in the
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Hybrid Notes

Zero Coupon Notes

Other Notes

Meetings of the Noteholders

Rating

applicable Final Terms. ETI Linked Notes may also provide for
settlement by physical delivery of the Entitlement.

Commodity Linked Notes

Payments (in respect of principal or interest) in respect of
Commodity (e.g. oil) Linked Notes will be calculated by
reference to one or more commodities and/or commodity
indices as set out in the applicable Final Terms.

Fund Linked Notes

Payments (in respect of principal or interest) in respect of Fund
(e.g. a fund in the form of a fonds commun de placement
(FCP) marketed by BNP Paribas Asset Management) Linked
Notes will be calculated by reference to units, interests or
shares in a single fund or basket of funds on such terms as set
out in the applicable Final Terms. Fund Linked Notes may
also provide for redemption by physical delivery of the
Entitlement.

Credit Linked Notes

Payments (in respect of principal or interest) in respect of
Credit Linked Notes (e.g. the risk of failure to pay of an entity
on its senior debt) will be reduced (in certain circumstances to
zero) if a credit event occurs in respect of the reference
entity(ies) as set out in the applicable Final Terms. Any such
payment may be made by way of cash settlement or physical
delivery of a reference asset.

Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Linked Notes

Payments (in respect of principal or interest) in respect of
Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Linked Notes will be calculated
by reference to one or more foreign exchange rates (e.g.
Euro/US Dollar) as set out in the applicable Final Terms.

Payments (in respect of principal or interest) in respect of
Hybrid Notes will be calculated by reference to any
combination of Underlying References as set out in the
applicable Final Terms.

Zero Coupon Notes will not bear interest other than in the case
of late payment. Such Notes are subject to higher price
fluctuations than non-discounted notes.

Terms applicable to any other type of Note which the relevant
Issuer may agree to issue under the Programme will be set out
in the applicable Final Terms.

All payments under the Notes shall be made free and clear of,
and without any withholding tax, unless such withholding is
required by law, as specified in Condition 6 of the "Terms and
Conditions of the Notes".

Holders of the Notes may call or be called to, a Noteholders'
meeting and consulted in accordance with the provisions of
the Agency Agreement.

Notes issued by BNPP under the Programme may be rated or
unrated. Details of the rating, if any, attributable to an issue of
Notes will be set out in the applicable Final Terms.

A rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities
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Listing and admission to trading

Offer to the Public

Method of Publication of this
Base Prospectus and the Final
Terms

Governing Law

Depositaries/ Clearing Systems

Selling Restrictions

and may be subject to suspension, change or withdrawal at
any time by the assigning rating agency.

On the date hereof the long term senior debt of BNPP is rated
Aa2 by Moody's Investors Services Inc. ("Moody's"), AA by
Standard and Poor's Ratings Services ("S&P") and AA- by
Fitch Ratings Ltd. ("Fitch").

The long term senior debt of BNPP B.V. is not rated.

The rating of certain Series of Notes to be issued under the
Programme may be specified in the applicable Final Terms.
Whether or not each credit rating applied for in relation to
relevant Series of Notes will be issued by a credit rating
agency established in the European Union and registered
under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (the "CRA Regulation")
will be disclosed in the Final Terms.

Listing and admission to trading on Euronext Paris or the
EuroMTF Market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange or any
other stock exchange(s) as may be specified in the applicable
Final Terms. A Series of Notes may be unlisted.

If so specified in the applicable Final Terms, Notes may be
offered to the public in France and/or any other EEA Member
State in which the Base Prospectus is passported and which
shall be specified in the applicable Final Terms.

This Base Prospectus, any supplement thereto and the Final
Terms related to the Notes listed and admitted to trading on
any Regulated Market in the EEA will be published on the
website of the AMF (www.amf-france.org) and copies may be
obtained at the Principal Paying Agent's offices. The Base
Prospectus and any supplement thereto will be available on
the Issuer's website: "www.invest.bnpparibas.com".

The Notes and the Guarantee are governed by English law,
except General Condition 2(c) which, if applicable, will be
governed by, and construed in accordance with, the laws of
France.

Euroclear Bank SA/NV, Clearstream Banking, société
anonyme, Luxembourg and Euroclear France.

There are restrictions on the offer and sale of Notes and the
distribution of offering material in various jurisdictions. In
connection with the offering and sale of a particular Tranche,
additional selling restrictions may be imposed which will be set
out in the relevant Final Terms.

Each Issuer is a Category 2 for the purposes of Regulation S.
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Résumé En Francais (SUMMARY IN FRENCH)

Le paragraphe suivant doit étre lu comme une introduction au Résumé si I'Etat Membre
concerné n'a pas transposé en droit interne les exigences de modification du Résumé
résultant de la Directive Modificatrice DP 2010:

Ce résumé doit étre Ilu comme une introduction au présent Document. Toute décision
d’'investissement dans des Titres doit étre fondée sur un examen exhaustif du présent Document et
de tout document incorporé par référence. Aucune responsabilité civile ne pourra étre attribuée aux
personnes responsables du prospectus dans chacun des Etats Membres de I'Espace Economique
Européen (un Etat EEE) sur la base du seul résumé ou de sa traduction, sauf si son contenu est
trompeur, inexact ou contradictoire par rapport aux autres parties du présent Document. Lorsqu’une
action relative a l'information contenue dans ce Document est intentée devant le tribunal d’'un Etat
EEE, le demandeur peut, selon la législation nationale de I'Etat EEE concerné, avoir & supporter les
frais de traduction du présent Document avant le début de toute procédure judiciaire.

Le paragraphe suivant doit étre lu comme une introduction au Résumé si I'Etat Membre
concerné atransposé en droit interne les exigences de modification du Résumé résultant de la
Directive Modificatrice DP 2010:

Ce résumé doit étre lu comme une introduction au présent Document et toute décision
d’investissement dans des Titres doit étre fondée sur un examen exhaustif du présent Document et
de tout document incorporé par référence. Une fois les dispositions de la Directive Prospectus
(Directive 2003/71/EC, telle que modifiée par la Directive 2010/73/EU) transposées dans chaque Etat
Membre de I'Espace Economique (un Etat EEE). Aucune responsabilité civile ne sera recherchée
dans n'importe lequel des Etats membres auprés des personnes qui ont présenté le présent résumé
ou sa traduction, a moins que le contenu du résumé ne soit jugé trompeur, inexact ou contradictoire
par rapport aux autres parties du présent Document, ou s'il ne fournit pas, par rapport aux autres
parties du Document, les informations essentielles permettant d'aider les investisseurs lorsqu'ils
envisagent d'investir dans les Titres. Lorsqu'une action relative a l'information contenue dans ce
Document est intentée devant le tribunal d'un Etat EEE, le demandeur peut, selon la législation
nationale de I'Etat EEE concerné, avoir a supporter les frais de traduction du présent Document avant
le début de toute procédure judiciaire.

Les termes et expressions définis dans les sections "Form of the Notes" et " Terms and Conditions of
the Notes" ci-dessous ainsi que dans les Conditions Définitives applicables, ont la méme signification
dans le présent résumeé.

| — Informations clés relatives aux Emetteurs

Description de BNPP B.V. 1) Informations clés sur BNPP B.V.:

BNPP B.V. est une société a responsabilité limitée de droit
néerlandais dont I'objet social et les objectifs principaux sont
d'émettre et d'acquérir des instruments financiers de tous
ordres et de conclure des contrats qui y sont relatifs pour le
compte de diverses entités du Groupe.

2) Capital social au 31 décembre 2010:

Son capital social au 31 décembre 2010 est de 225 000
euros réparti en 225 000 actions d'une valeur nominale de 1
euro chacune.
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Description de BNPP

3) Informations financiéres clés sélectionnées:

En million d'euros

31/12/2010 31/12/2009
Produit Net Bancaire 414 357 524 146
Résultat net part du 28 537 36 953
Groupe
Total de bilan 32958 741 398 31 381 818 862
Capitaux propre part du 345 650 317 113
Groupe

1) Informations clés sur BNPP :

BNPP est une société anonyme de droit frangais agréée en
qualité de banque. BNPP et ses filiales consolidées (le
Groupe) est un leader européen des services bancaires et
financiers et posséde quatre marchés domestiques de banque
de détail en Europe : la Belgique, la France, l'ltalie et le
Luxembourg.

2) Capital social au 31 décembre 2010:

2 397 320 312 euros réparti en 1 198 660 156 actions d'une
valeur nominale de 2 euros chacune.

3) Principales activités et marchés :

BNPP détient des positions clés dans ses trois domaines
d'activité :

e l'activité de banque de détail: regroupe des réseaux
d'agences (notamment en Europe et autour du Bassin
méditerranéen) et des services financiers spécialisés ;

e le pble Investment Solutions regroupe une gamme unique
de solutions répondant a I'ensemble des besoins présents
et futurs des investisseurs institutionnels, entreprises ou
particuliers y compris la gestion d’actifs (BNP Paribas
Investment  Partners), [l'assurance (BNP  Paribas
Assurance), la banque privée (BNP Paribas Wealth
Management), I'épargne et le courtage en ligne (BNP
Paribas Personal Investors), le métier titres (BNP Paribas
Securities Services) et les services immobiliers (BNP
Paribas Real Estate) ; et

e le péle Corporate and Investment Banking (CIB): opére
dans les métiers de financement ainsi que dans le conseil
et les métiers de marché de capitaux. En 2010, CIB a
apporté une contribution significative au groupe BNP
Paribas, tant en termes d’activit¢ que de résultat. Le
principal objectif de CIB est d’accompagner les clients dans
leur stratégie de développement ou d’investissement et de
répondre avec des solutions globales a leur besoin de
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Facteurs de risques relatifs
aux Emetteurs

financement, de conseil financier et de gestion de leurs

risques.

4) Informations financieres clés sélectionnées :

En millions d’euros

Produit Net Bancaire
Codt du Risque

Résultat net part du
groupe

Ratio Common  Equity
Tier 1

Ratio Tier 1
Total de bilan consolidé

Montant total des préts
et créances sur la
clientéle

Total consolidé des
dettes envers la clientéle

Capitaux propres part du
Groupe

31/12/2010

43 880
(4 802)
7 843

9,2%

11,4%

1998 158

684 686

580 913

74 632

31/12/2009
40 191

(8 369)

5 832

8,0%

10,1%

2 057 698

678 766

604 903

69 501

Certains risques peuvent affecter la capacité de chaque
Emetteur a satisfaire ses obligations relatives aux Titres émis
dans le cadre du Programme et affecter la capacité du Garant

a satisfaire ses obligations au titre de la Garantie.

Neuf catégories principales de risques sont inhérentes aux

activités de BNPP :

¢ Risque de crédit et de contrepartie ;

¢ Risque de marché ;

¢ Risque opérationnel (y compris risque de non-conformité et

de réputation) ;

¢ Risque de gestion actif-passif ;

¢ Risque de liquidité et de refinancement ;

¢ Risque de souscription d'assurance ;

e Risque de point mort (c'est-a-dire le risque de perte
d’exploitation résultant d’'un changement d’environnement
économique entrainant une baisse des recettes, conjugué a
une élasticité insuffisante des codts);
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¢ Risque stratégique ; et
¢ Risque de concentration.

Des conditions macro-économiques et de marché difficiles
pourraient dans le futur avoir un effet défavorable significatif
sur les conditions dans lesquelles évoluent les établissements
financiers et sur la situation financiére, les résultats et le coat
du risque de BNPP.

La crise financiére récente a entrainé et entrainera
vraisemblablement a I'avenir un renforcement important de la
réglementation applicable au secteur financier, ce qui pourrait
avoir des conséquences significatives et défavorables sur les
activités, la situation financiére et les résultats de BNPP.

Un certain nombre de mesures exceptionnelles prises par des
gouvernements, des banques centrales et des régulateurs afin
de remédier a la crise financiére, de stabiliser les marchés
financiers et de soutenir les institutions financiéres ont été
récemment ou pourraient bientét étre suspendues ou
interrompues, ce qui, dans un contexte de reprise économique
relativement fragile, pourrait avoir un effet défavorable sur les
conditions d'activité des établissements financiers.

Toute augmentation substantielle des provisions ou tout
engagement insuffisamment provisionné peut peser sur les
résultats et la situation financiére de BNPP.

Les fluctuations des marchés et la volatilité exposent BNPP au
risque de pertes substantielles sur ses activités de trading et
d’investissement.

Les revenus tirés des activités de courtage et des activités
générant des commissions sont potentiellement vulnérables a
une baisse des marchés.

Une baisse prolongée des marchés peut réduire la liquidité et
rendre plus difficile la cession d’actifs. Une telle situation
pourrait engendrer des pertes significatives.

Toute variation significative des taux d’intérét est susceptible
de peser sur les revenus ou la rentabilité de BNPP.

La solidité financiére et le comportement des autres institutions
financieres et acteurs du marché pourraient avoir un effet
défavorable sur BNPP.

Toute préjudice porté a la réputation de BNPP pourrait nuire a
sa compétitivité.

Toute interruption ou défaillance des systémes informatiques
de BNPP peut entrainer un manque a gagner et engendrer
des pertes.

Des événements externes imprévus peuvent provoquer une
interruption des activittss de BNPP et entrainer des pertes
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Facteurs de Risque relatifs
aux Titres

substantielles ainsi que des colts supplémentaires.

BNPP est soumise a une réglementation importante et
fluctuante dans les pays et régions ou elle exerce ses activités.

Malgré les politiques, procédures et méthodes de gestion du
risque mises en ceuvre, BNPP peut étre exposée a des
risques non identifiés ou imprévus, susceptibles d’occasionner
des pertes significatives.

Les stratégies de couverture mises en place par BNPP
n’écartent pas tout risque de perte.

La politique de croissance externe de BNPP comporte des
risques, notamment relatifs a l'intégration des entités acquises,
et BNPP pourrait ne pas réaliser les bénéfices attendus de ses
acquisitions.

Une intensification de la concurrence, en particulier en France,
premier marché de BNPP, pourrait peser sur les revenus et la
rentabilité.

Les facteurs de risque suivants sont relatifs a BNPP B.V.:
BNPP B.V. est une entreprise d'exploitation. L'unique activité
de BNPP B.V. est de lever des capitaux et d’emprunter des
liquidités via I'émission de titres et autres obligations. BNPP
B.V. n’a pas, et n’aura pas d’autres actifs que des contrats de
gré a gré, des liquidités et des commissions qui lui sont dues,
ou les autres actifs qu'elle a acquis, dans chaque cas relatifs a
I’émission de Titres. La capacité de BNPP B.V. a satisfaire ses
obligations relatives aux Titres qu’elle a émis dépendra du
recouvrement des paiements qui lui sont dis au titre des
contrats de couverture concernés. Par conséquent, BNPP B.V.
est exposée a un risque de contrepartie au titre des contrats
de couverture lié a la capacité de ses contreparties a satisfaire
leurs obligations au titre de ces contrats de couverture.

Certains risques sont essentiels en vue de déterminer les
risques de marché liés aux Titres émis dans le cadre du
Programme. Ces facteurs sont énumérés dans la section "Risk
Factors" et incluent notamment :

1) Risques financiers

e |les Titres peuvent ne pas étre un investissement
approprié pour tous les investisseurs

e risques liés a la liquidité/négociation des Titres

Les Titres peuvent ne pas avoir un marché de
négociation établi au moment de leur émission. Il ne peut
étre garanti qu'un marché actif des Titres se développera
sur la bourse ou les Titres sont cotés ou qu'une liquidité
existera a tout moment sur ce marché s'il s'en développe
un. En conséquence les investisseurs pourraient ne pas
étre en mesure de vendre leurs Titres avant la date
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d'échéance.
risques liés a la valeur de marché des Titres

La valeur de marché des Titres peut étre affectée
notamment par la solvabilité de I'Emetteur, du Garant ou
du Groupe ainsi que par un certan nombre d'autres
facteurs.

risques liés aux taux de change et au controle des
changes

Les investisseurs dont les activités financiéres sont
effectuées principalement dans une devise différente de
la devise d'émission des Titres encourent un risque lié a
la conversion des devises.

risques liés aux notations de crédit

La notation des Titres ne reflete pas nécessairement
I'impact potentiel de tous les risques liés aux Titres ni
tous les autres facteurs (notamment la solvabilité de
I'Emetteur) pouvant affecter la valeur des Titres.

risques en terme de rendement

Le rendement réel des Titres obtenu par le Porteur
pourra étre inférieur au rendement déclaré en raison des
colts de réalisation de I'émission.

Risques liés a la subordination des Titres Subordonnés
émis par BNPP.

En outre, il existe des risques liés a la structure d'une
émission particuliere de Titres (notamment s'agissant des
Titres pouvant étre remboursés de fagon anticipée a
linitiative de I'Emetteur, Titres portant intérét a taux flottant,
Titres Zéro Coupon, Titres liés a un sous-jacent et les Titres
Subordonnés émis par BNPP).

2) Risques juridiques

risques liés aux conflits d'intéréts potentiels entre
I'Emetteur, le Garant, I'Agent de Calcul ou leurs filiales
respectives et les porteurs de Titres

risques liés a la fiscalité (y compris les modifications
relatives a la Directive européenne sur I'Epargne)

Les acquéreurs et vendeurs potentiels de Titres doivent
savoir qu'il est possible qu'ils aient a payer des taxes ou
autre imposition ou droits similaires en application des
lois et pratiques de I'Etat dans lequel les Titres sont
transférés.

risques liés a un changement |Iégislatif

Les Titres sont régis par la loi anglaise a la date du
Prospectus de Base. Aucune assurance ne peut étre
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donnée quant aux conséquences d'une décision judiciaire
ou d'une modification de la législation ou de son
interprétation postérieure a la date du Prospectus de
Base.

3) Risques liés a un sous-jacent

e risques liés a I'exposition au sous-jacent

Les Titres liés a un sous-jacent conferent une exposition
a un ou plusieurs indice, action, indice d'inflation, matiére
premiéere, fonds, le crédit d'une ou plusieurs entité de
référence, instrument négocié sur un marché, ou taux de
change (chacun appelé "Sous-Jacent de Référence").
Un tel Titre peut comporter un risque similaire ou
supérieur (notamment en cas d'effet de levier) a un
investissement directement dans le Sous-Jacent de
Référence.

e risques spécifiques liés a la nature du sous-jacent

Chaque Sous-Jacent de Référence comporte des risques qui
lui sont propres et qui exposent le porteur des Titres a une
perte partielle ou totale de son investissement. Ainsi par
exemple (i) un Titre lié & une action, une matiére premiére ou
un fonds pourra voir son rendement ou son montant de
remboursement fluctuer en fonction de I'évolution du cours ou
prix de ce sous-jacent et (ii) un Titre lié¢ a un crédit verra le
montant de ses intéréts ou son montant de remboursement
impacté négativement en cas de survenance d'un événement
de crédit affectant I'entité de référence ou une obligation de
référence sous-jacente a ce titre. Ces risques spécifiques
peuvent en outre étre liés a un événement extraordinaire
affectant le Sous-Jacent de Référence. Les investisseurs
doivent comprendre les risques susceptibles d'affecter le
Sous-Jacent de Référence concerné avant d'investir dans un
Titre lié a un sous-jacent.

Dans certaines circonstances les Porteurs de Titres peuvent
perdre la valeur totale de leur investissement

Il — Informations clés relatives aux Titres émis sous le Programme

Description du Programme

Emetteurs

Garant (pour les Titres émis par
BNPP B.V.)

Agents Placeurs (désignés
conformément aux termes de

Programme d'émission/admission de titres de créance
BNP Paribas (BNPP)

BNP Paribas Arbitrage Issuance B.V. (BNPP B.V.)
BNP Paribas

Pour les émissions réalisées par BNPP :
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I'Agency Agreement)

Agent de Calcul

Agent Payeur Principal et Agent
Financier

Autre Agent Payeur

Montant Maximum du
Programme

Devises

Valeur(s) Nominale(s)

Utilisation des produits

Forme des Titres

Modalités des Titres

Méthode d'émission

Barclays Capital PLC

BNP Paribas UK Limited

Citigroup Global Markets Limited

Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited
Goldman Sachs International
J.P.Morgan Securities Ltd.

Merrill Lynch International

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc
UBS Limited

Pour les émissions réalisées par BNPP B.V. :
BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.

BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch, ou
tout autre agent de calcul pour les besoins d'une Souche de
Titres particuliére

BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch

BNP Paribas Securities Services

90.000.000.000 euros ou sa contre-valeur dans d'autres
devises

Les Titres et paiements relatifs aux Titres peuvent étre
libellés en toutes devises.

La valeur nominale des Titres sera spécifiée dans les
Conditions Définitives applicables, étant entendu que la
valeur nominale minimum de chaque Titre admis a la
négociation sur un marché réglementé, ou offert au public
dans un Etat EEE sera de 1.000 euros (ou sa contre-valeur
dans la devise d'émission).

Sauf mention contraire dans les Conditions Définitives, le
produit net de chaque émission de Titres sera affecté aux
besoins généraux de financement du Groupe.

Les Titres seront émis au porteur ou sous forme nominative
en dehors des Etats-Unis.

Les Titres pourront étre assortis de toute maturité
convenue, émis sur une base intégralement ou
partiellement libérée, et & un prix d’émission égal au pair, ou
avec une décote ou une prime par rapport au pair.

Les Conditions Définitives stipuleront la base de calcul des
intéréts (fixes, variables ou liés a un Sous-Jacent de
Référence) et montants de remboursement. Le montant de
remboursement pourra étre inférieur au pair.

Les Titres pourront étre émis sur une base syndiquée ou
non syndiquée. Les Titres seront émis par Souches ayant
une ou plusieurs dates d'émission, dont les modalités seront
identiques. Chaque Souche pourra étre émise en différentes
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Rang de créance des Titres Non
Subordonnés

Rang de créance des Titres
Subordonnés

Cas de Défaut

Titres liés a un Sous-Jacent de
Référence

tranches a des dates d'émission identiques ou différentes.
Les conditions spécifiques a chaque Tranche seront
définies dans les Conditions Définitives concernées.

Les Titres Non Subordonnés émis par BNPP et I'ensemble
des Titres émis par BNPP B.V. constitueront des obligations
directes, inconditionnelles, non assorties de sOretés et non
subordonnées, de I'Emetteur concerné et viendront au
méme rang que tous les autres engagements directs,
inconditionnels non assortis de slretés et non subordonnés
de 'Emetteur (sauf les exceptions prévues par la loi).

BNPP peut émettre des Titres Subordonnés, notamment
des Titres Subordonnés a Durée Déterminée et des Titres
Subordonnés a Durée Indéterminée. Ces titres seront
subordonnés au Titres Non Subordonnés mais auront un
rang supérieur aux préts participatifs octroyés a BNPP et
aux titres participatifs émis par BNPP.

Chaque catégorie de Titres Subordonnés est décrite dans la
section " Terms and Conditions of the Notes" ci-apres.

Les Titres Non Subordonnés bénéficieront de dispositions
relatives a des cas de défaut.

Le principal et/ou les intéréts des Titres pourront étre liés a
différents types de sous-jacents tel que précisé ci-aprés. Le
rendement et/ou le montant de remboursement de ces
Titres variera en conséquence en fonction de la
performance de ces sous-jacents et de la formule précisée
dans les Conditions Définitives applicables. Cette
performance pourra étre négative. Les modalités des Titres
concernées prévoiront les événements affectant le Sous-
Jacent de Référence dont la survenance entrainera des
ajustements et/ou le remboursement anticipé des Titres et
les modalités de ces ajustements.

Titres Liés a un Indice

Les paiements (de principal ou d’intéréts) sur les Titres Liés
a un Indice (par exemple lindice Eurostoxx 50) seront
calculés par référence a un ou plusieurs indices tel que
précisé dans les Conditions Définitives.

Titres Liés a une Action

Les paiements (de principal ou d’intéréts) sur les Titres Liés
a une Action (par exemple l'action de la société Klépierre)
seront calculés par référence a une ou plusieurs actions,
ADRs et/ou GDRs (ensemble dénommés au titre des
présentes Actions et chacun dénommé une Action) tel que
précisé dans les Conditions Définitives. Les Titres Liés a
une Action peuvent également prévoir le remboursement
par la livraison physique du sous-jacent.
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Titres Hybrides

Titres Liés a I'Inflation

Les paiements (de principal ou d’intéréts) sur les Titres Liés
a I'Inflation seront calculés par référence a un ou plusieurs
Indices d’inflation tel que précisé dans les Conditions
Définitives.

Titres Liés a des Instruments Négociés en Bourse

Les paiements (de principal ou d’intéréts) relatifs a des
Titres Liés a des Instruments Négociés en Bourse seront
calculés par référence aux intéréts das au titre d'un ou
plusieurs instrument(s) négocié(s) sur un marché tel que
précisé dans les Conditions Définitives. Les Titres Liés a
des Instruments Négociés en Bourse peuvent également
prévoir le réglement par livraison physique de l'instrument
sous-jacent.

Titres Liés aux Matieéres Premiéres

Les paiements (de principal ou d’intéréts) sur les Titres Liés
aux Matieres Premiéres (par exemple le pétrole) seront
calculés par référence a une ou plusieurs matieres
premiéres et/ou indices de matiéres premieres tel que
précisé dans les Conditions Définitives.

Titres Liés a un Fonds

Les paiements (de principal ou d’intéréts, a I'échéance ou
non) sur les Titres Liés a un fonds seront calculés par
référence aux unités, intéréts ou actions dans un fonds (par
exemple un FCP commercialisé par BNP Paribas Asset
Management) ou un panier de fonds tel que précisé dans
les Conditions Définitives. Les Titres Liés a un fonds
peuvent également prévoir le remboursement au moyen de
la livraison physique du sous-jacent.

Titres Liés a un Risque de Crédit

Les paiements (de principal ou d'intéréts) sur les Titres Liés
a un Risque de Crédit (par exemple le risque de défaut de
paiement d'une société sur sa dette senior) seront minorés
(voire réduits a zéro) en cas de survenance d'un événement
de crédit sur l'entité ou les entité de référence tel que
précisé dans les Conditions Définitives. Ces paiements
pourront étre effectués en espéce ou par livraison d'un actif
de référence.

Titres Liés aux taux de change (FX)

Les paiements (de principal ou d’intéréts) sur les Titres Liés
au taux de change (FX) (par exemple euro/dollar US) seront
calculés par référence a un ou plusieurs taux de change tel
que précisé dans les Conditions Définitives.

Les paiements (de principal ou d'intéréts, que ce soit a
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Titres Zéro Coupon

Autres Titres

Organisation collective des
Porteurs

Notation

Cotation et admission ala
négociation

I'échéance ou non) relatifs aux Titres Hybrides seront
calculés en référence a toute combinaison des Sous-
Jacents de Référence tel que précisé dans les Conditions
Définitives.

Les Titres Zéro Coupon ne portent pas d’intérét sauf dans le
cas de paiement tardif. Ces Titres sont sujets a des
fluctuations de prix plus importantes que les titres qui ne
sont pas émis en dessous du pair.

Les Conditions applicables a tout autre type de Titres que
'Emetteur concerné pourrait convenir d’émettre sous le
Programme seront détaillées dans les Conditions
Définitives.

Tout paiement en relation avec les Titres devra étre fait net
de tout prélevement a la source, a moins que ce
prélévement ne soit légalement requis, conformément a la
Condition 6 des Modalités des Titres.

Les Porteurs de Titres peuvent demander a étre réunis ou
pourront étre réunis en assemblée et consultés dans les
conditions prévues dans le contrat de service financier
(Agency Agreement).

Les Titres émis par BNPP peuvent faire l'objet d'une
notation ou non. Toute notation sera précisée dans les
Conditions Définitives.

Une notation n’est pas une recommandation d’achat, de
vente ni de détention de titres et peut faire I'objet d’une
suspension, d’'une modification ou d’un retrait a tout moment
de la part de l'agence de notation ayant attribué cette
notation.

A ce jour la dette a long terme non-subordonnée de BNPP
est notée Aa2 par Moody's Investors Services Inc.
(Moody's), AA par Standard and Poor's Ratings Services
(S&P) et AA- par Fitch Ratings Ltd. (Fitch).

BNPP B.V. n'a pas de notation de sa dette a long terme
non-subordonnée.

La notation de certaines Souches de Titres a émettre dans
le cadre du Programme sera précisée dans les Conditions
Définitives.

Il sera précisé dans les Conditions Définitives si chaque
notation de crédit sollicitée pour une Souche de Titres sera
attribuée par une agence de crédit établie dans I'Union
Européenne et enregistrée conformément au Réglement
(CE) n°. 1060/2009 (le Reglement CRA).

Cotation et admission a la négociation sur Euronext Paris
ou sur le Marché EuroMTF de la Bourse de Luxembourg ou
sur un autre marché, tel que stipulé dans les Conditions
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Offre au public

Méthode de publication de ce
Prospectus et des Conditions
Définitives

Droit applicable

Systéemes de compensation

Restrictions de vente

Définitives. Une Souche de Titres peut ne pas étre cotée.

Les Titres pourront étre offerts au public en France et/ou
dans un autre Etat membre de I'EEE, dans lequel le
prospectus de base aura été passeporté et qui aura été
spécifié dans les Conditions Définitives applicables.

Ce Prospectus, tout supplément a celui-ci et les Conditions
Définitives relatives aux Titres cotés et admis a la
négociation sur un marché réglementé dans un Etat EEE
seront publiés sur le site internet de I'AMF (www.amf-
france.org) et des copies pourront étre obtenues dans les
bureaux de I'Agent Payeur Principal. Le présent Prospectus
et tout supplément a celui-ci seront publiés sur le site
internet de I'Emetteur : www.invest.bnpparibas.com.

Les Titres et la Garantie seront régis par le droit anglais,
sauf pour la Condition Générale 2(c) qui, si elle est
applicable, sera soumise au et interprétée selon le droit
francais.

Euroclear Bank SA/NV Clearstream Banking, société
anonyme, Luxembourg et Euroclear France.

Il existe des restrictions applicables a I'offre et a la vente de
Titres ainsi qu'a la distribution de tout support commercial
dans diverses juridictions. Ces restrictions sont prévues
dans la section "Subscription and Sale". Pour une émission
particuliére, des restrictions de vente supplémentaires
pourront étre précisées dans les Conditions Définitives
concernées.

Chaque Emetteur fait partie de la Catégorie 2 sous la
Regulation S.
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RISK FACTORS

Prospective purchasers of the Notes offered hereby should consider carefully, among other things
and in light of their financial circumstances and investment objectives, all of the information in this
Document and, in particular, the risk factors set forth below (which each Issuer, in its reasonable
opinion, believes represents or may represent the risk factors known to it which may affect such
Issuer's ability to fulfil its obligations under the Notes) in making an investment decision. Noteholders
may lose the value of their entire investment in certain circumstances.

Terms used in this section and not otherwise defined have the meanings given to them in the relevant
Conditions.

Risks Relating to the Bank and its Operations

See the section entitled Risk Factors contained on pages 5 to 10 of the Information Statement which
is incorporated by reference in this document.

Risk Factors Relating to BNPP B.V.

BNPP B.V. is an operating company. BNPP B.V.'s sole business is the raising and borrowing of
money by issuing securities or other obligations. BNPP B.V. has, and will have, no assets other than
hedging agreements (OTC contracts mentioned in the Annual Reports), cash and fees payable to it,
or other assets acquired by it, in each case in connection with the Notes or entry into other obligations
related thereto from time to time. The net proceeds from each issue of Notes issued by the Issuer will
become part of the general funds of BNPP B.V. BNPP B.V. may use such proceeds to maintain
positions in options or futures contracts or other hedging instruments ("Hedging Agreements"). The
ability of BNPP B.V. to meet its obligations under Notes issued by it will depend on the receipt by it of
payments under the relevant Hedging Agreements and consequently, Holders of BNPP B.V. Notes
will, subject to the provisions of the Guarantee, be exposed to the ability of counterparties in respect
of such Hedging Agreements to perform their obligations under such Hedging Agreements.

Risk Factors Relating to the Notes
General

There are certain factors which are material for the purpose of assessing the risks associated with an
investment in Notes issued under the Programme. Such factors will vary depending on the type of
Notes issued, in particular in relation to Notes ("Underlying Reference Linked Notes"), the interest
and/or redemption amount is linked to the value of one or more index, share, GDR or ADR, inflation
index, commodity, unit, interest or share in a fund, the credit of one or more reference entity, interest
in an exchange traded funds, exchange traded notes, exchange traded commodities or other
exchange traded products (each an "exchange traded instrument"), foreign exchange rate or the
combination of any of the foregoing or such other underlying or basis of reference (each an
"Underlying Reference").

Claims Against the Underlying Reference

The Notes do not represent a claim against any Underlying Reference (or any issuer, sponsor,
manager or other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference) and Noteholders will not
have any right of recourse under the Notes to any such Underlying Reference (or any issuer, sponsor,
manager or other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference). The Notes are not in any
way sponsored, endorsed or promoted by any issuer, sponsor, manager or other connected person in
respect of an Underlying Reference and such entities have no obligation to take into account the
consequences of their actions on any Noteholders.

Notes are Unsecured Obligations

Senior Notes issued by BNPP and all Notes issued by BNPP B.V. are unsubordinated and unsecured
obligations of the relevant Issuer and will rank pari passu with themselves. Each issue of Notes issued
by BNPP B.V. will be guaranteed by BNPP pursuant to the Guarantee. The obligations of BNPP
under the Guarantee are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passu
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with all its other present and future unsubordinated and unsecured obligations, subject as may from
time to time be mandatory under French law.

The trading market for the Notes may be volatile and may be adversely impacted by many events.

The market for debt securities is influenced by the economic and market conditions, interest rates,
currency exchange rates and inflation rates in Europe and other industrialised countries and areas.
There can be no assurance that events in France, the Netherlands, Europe or elsewhere will not
cause market volatility or that such volatility will not adversely affect the price of Notes or that
economic and market conditions will not have any other adverse effect.

An active trading market for the Notes may not develop.

There can be no assurance that an active trading market for the Notes will develop, or, if one does
develop, that it will be maintained. If an active trading market for the Notes does not develop or is not
maintained, the market or trading price and liquidity of the Notes may be adversely affected. If
additional and competing products are introduced in the markets, this may adversely affect the value
of the Notes. It is not possible to predict the price at which Notes will trade in the secondary market.
The relevant Issuer may, but is not obliged to, list Notes on a stock exchange. Also, to the extent
Notes of a particular issue are redeemed in part, the number of Notes of such issue outstanding will
decrease, resulting in a diminished liquidity for the remaining Notes of such issue. A decrease in the
liquidity of an issue of Notes may cause, in turn, an increase in the volatility associated with the price
of such issue of Notes. A lack of liquidity for the Notes may mean that investors are not able to sell
their Notes or may not be able to sell their Notes at a price equal to the price which they paid for them,
and consequently investors may suffer a partial or total loss of the amount of their investment.

A credit rating reduction may result in a reduction in the trading value of the Notes.

The value of the Notes is expected to be affected, in part, by investors' general appraisal of the
creditworthiness of the Issuer and, if applicable, the Guarantor. Such perceptions are generally
influenced by the ratings accorded to the outstanding securities of the BNPP B.V. and BNPP by
standard statistical rating services, such as Moody's Investors Service Limited ("Moody's"), Standard
& Poor's Ratings Services, a division of The McGraw Hill Companies, Inc. ("Standard & Poor's") and
Fitch Ratings Ltd. ("Fitch"). A reduction in the rating, if any, accorded to outstanding debt securities of
BNPP B.V. and BNPP by one of these or other rating agencies could result in a reduction in the
trading value of the Notes.

Ratings of the Notes

In general, European regulated investors are restricted under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (the
"CRA Regulation") from using credit ratings for regulatory purposes, unless such ratings are issued
by a credit rating agency established in the EU and registered under the CRA Regulation (and such
registration has not been withdrawn or suspended), subject to transitional provisions that apply in
certain circumstances whilst the registration application is pending. Such general restriction will also
apply in the case of credit ratings issued by non-EU credit rating agencies, unless the relevant credit
ratings are endorsed by an EU-registered credit rating agency or the relevant non-EU rating agency is
certified in accordance with the CRA Regulation (and such endorsement action or certification, as the
case may be, has not been withdrawn or suspended). Certain information with respect to the credit
rating agencies and ratings referred to in this Prospectus and/or the Final Terms, is set out in the
Summary of this Prospectus and will be disclosed in the Final Terms.

Risk of Leveraged Exposure

Leverage involves the use of a number of financial techniques to increase the exposure to an
Underlying Reference, and can therefore magnify both returns and losses. While the use of leverage
allows for potential multiples of a return (assuming a return is achieved) when the Underlying
Reference moves in the anticipated direction, it will conversely magnify losses when the Underlying
Reference moves against expectations. If the leverage is negative, the maximum loss for investors
shall be the amount of their initial investment in the Notes. If the relevant Notes include leverage,
potential holders of such Notes should note that these Notes will involve a higher level of risk, and
that whenever there are losses such losses will be higher (other things being equal) than those of a
similar Note which is not leveraged. Investors should therefore only invest in leveraged Notes if they
fully understand the effect of leverage.
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EU Savings Directive

Under EC Council Directive 2003/48/EC on the taxation of savings income in the form of interest
payments (the "Savings Directive"), Member States are required to provide to the tax authorities of
another Member State details of payments of interest (or similar income) made by a paying agent
located within their jurisdiction to an individual resident in that other Member State or to certain limited
types of entities established in that other Member State. However, for a transitional period,
Luxembourg and Austria are instead required (unless during that period the beneficiaries of interest
payments elect otherwise) to operate a withholding system in relation to such payments (the ending of
such transitional period being dependent upon the conclusion of certain other agreements relating to
information exchange with certain other countries). A number of non-EU countries and territories
including Switzerland have adopted similar measures (a withholding system in the case of
Switzerland).

For these purposes, the term "paying agent” is defined widely and includes in particular any economic
operator who is responsible for making interest payments, within the meaning of the Savings
Directive, for the immediate benefit of individuals or certain entities.

The European Commission has proposed certain amendments to the Savings Directive, which may, if
implemented, amend or broaden the scope of the requirements described above.

If a payment were to be made or collected through a Member State which has opted for a withholding
system and an amount of, or in respect of, tax were to be withheld from that payment, neither of the
Issuers nor any Paying Agent nor any other person would be obliged to pay additional amounts with
respect to any Note as a result of the imposition of such withholding tax. Each Issuer is required to
maintain a Paying Agent in a Member State that is not obliged to withhold or deduct tax pursuant to
the Savings Directive.

Change of Law

The Conditions of the Notes are based on English law, or in the case of Condition 2(c), French Law,
in effect as at the date of this Base Prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any
possible judicial decision or change to an administrative practice or change to English law or French
law, as applicable, after the date of this Base Prospectus.

Minimum Trading Amount

Investors should note that the Notes may have a minimum trading amount. The minimum trading
amount (if any) will be specified in the applicable Final Terms. In such cases, if, following the transfer
of any Notes, a holder holds fewer Notes than the specified minimum trading amount, such holder will
not be permitted to transfer their remaining Notes prior to expiration or redemption, as applicable,
without first purchasing enough additional Notes in order to hold the minimum trading amount.

Potential Conflicts of Interest

Certain entities within the Group or its affiliates (including, if applicable, any Dealer) may also engage
in trading activities (including hedging activities) relating to the Underlying Reference and other
instruments or derivative products based on or relating to the Underlying Reference of any Notes for
their proprietary accounts or for other accounts under their management. BNPP B.V., BNPP and their
affiliates (including, if applicable, any Dealer) may also issue other derivative instruments in respect of
the Underlying Reference. BNPP B.V., BNPP and their affiliates (including, if applicable, any Dealer)
may also act as underwriter in connection with future offerings of shares or other securities relating to
an issue of Notes or may act as financial adviser to certain companies or companies whose shares or
other securities are included in a basket or in a commercial banking capacity for such companies. In
addition BNPP B.V., BNPP and their affiliates (including, if applicable, any Dealer) may act in a
number of different capacities in relation to an underlying index, including, but not limited to, issuer of
the constituents of the index, index sponsor or calculation agent. In respect of ETI Linked Notes and
Fund Linked Notes, the Issuer or one or more of its Affiliates may from time to time engage in
business with the relevant ETI or Fund, as the case may be, or companies in which an ETI or Fund,
as the case may be, invests, including among other things, extending loans to, or making investments
in, or providing advisory services to them, including merger and acquisition advisory services,
engaging in activities that may include prime brokerage business, financing transactions or entry into
derivative transactions. The ETI or Fund (each as defined below), as applicable, may pay a portion of
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its fees to the Issuer or any of its Affiliates for the provision of such services. In the course of this
business, the Issuer, the Guarantor (if any), the Calculation Agent and any of their respective Affiliates
may acquire non-public information about an ETI or a Fund, as applicable, or any companies, funds
or reference assets in which an ETI or a Fund invests and the Issuer, the Guarantor (if any), the
Calculation Agent or any of their respective Affiliates may publish research reports about them. This
research may be modified from time to time without notice and may express opinions or provide
recommendations that are inconsistent with purchasing or holding ETI Linked Notes or Fund Linked
Notes, as applicable. Such activities could present certain conflicts of interest, could influence the
prices of such shares, Fund Shares, ETI Interests or other securities and could adversely affect the
value of such Notes.

The Calculation Agent may be an affiliate of the Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) and
consequently, potential conflicts of interest may exist between the Calculation Agent and Noteholders,
including with respect to certain determinations and judgments that the Calculation Agent must make,
including whether a Market Disruption Event, a Settlement Disruption Event or Credit Event (each, as
defined below) has occurred. The Calculation Agent is obligated to carry out its duties and functions
as Calculation Agent in good faith and using its reasonable judgment however, subject to always
acting only within the parameters allowed by the terms and conditions of the Notes, it has no
responsibility to take investors' interests into account.

Post-issuance Information

Save as set out in the applicable Final Terms, the relevant Issuer will not provide post-issuance
information in relation to the Underlying Reference. In such an event, investors will not be entitled to
obtain such information from the relevant Issuer.

The Notes may be redeemed prior to maturity.

In the event that the relevant Issuer would be required to pay additional amounts in respect of any
Notes due to any withholding as provided in Condition 6 of the Terms and Conditions of the Notes,
the relevant Issuer may and, in certain circumstances, shall (subject, in the case of Subordinated
Notes, to the prior written consent of the Secrétariat général de I'Autorité de Contrdle Prudentiel in
France) redeem all of the Notes then outstanding in accordance with the Terms and Conditions of the
Notes.

In the event that one or more Events of Default (as defined at General Condition 8) occur, the Notes
may become immediately due and repayable at their Early Redemption Amount. In addition, in the
case of an Index Linked Note, Share Linked Note, Commaodity Linked Note, Fund Linked Note or an
ETI Linked Note, if "Automatic Early Redemption Event" is specified as being applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, on the occurrence of an Automatic Early Redemption Event the Notes will be
automatically redeemed at their Automatic Early Redemption Amount. In the case of an Index Linked
Note, Share Linked Note, Inflation Linked Note, Commodity Linked Note or an ETI Linked Note, if an
Additional Disruption Event and/or an Optional Additional Disruption Event occurs and "Delayed
Redemption on the Occurrence of Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional Additional Disruption
Event" is not specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Issuer may redeem the Notes early.

Redemption at the option of the Issuer

The Final Terms for a particular issue of Notes may provide for early redemption at the option of the
relevant Issuer. Such right of termination is often provided for notes in periods of high interest rates. If
the market interest rates decrease, the risk to Noteholders that the relevant Issuer will exercise its
right of termination increases. As a consequence, the yields received upon redemption may be lower
than expected, and the redeemed face amount of the Notes may be lower than the purchase price for
the Notes paid by the Noteholder. As a consequence, the Noteholder may not receive the total
amount of the capital invested. In addition, investors that choose to reinvest monies they receive
through an early redemption may be able to do so only in securities with a lower yield than the
redeemed Notes.

A Note's purchase price may not reflect its inherent value

Prospective investors in the Notes should be aware that the purchase price of a Note does not
necessarily reflect its inherent value. Any difference between a Note's purchase price and its inherent
value may be due to a number of different factors including, without limitation, prevailing market
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conditions and fees, discounts or commissions paid or accorded to the various parties involved in
structuring and/or distributing the Note. For further information prospective investors should refer to
the party from whom they are purchasing the Notes. Prospective investors may also wish to seek an
independent valuation of Notes prior to their purchase.

A Noteholder's actual yield on the Notes may be reduced from the stated yield by transaction costs.

When Notes are purchased or sold, several types of incidental costs (including transaction fees and
commissions) are incurred in addition to the current price of the security. These incidental costs may
significantly reduce or even exclude the profit potential of the Notes. For instance, credit institutions
as a rule charge their clients for own commissions which are either fixed minimum commissions or
pro-rata commissions depending on the order value. To the extent that additional — domestic or
foreign — parties are involved in the execution of an order, including but not limited to domestic
dealers or brokers in foreign markets, Noteholders must take into account that they may also be
charged for the brokerage fees, commissions and other fees and expenses of such parties (third party
costs).

In addition to such costs directly related to the purchase of securities (direct costs), Noteholders must
also take into account any follow-up costs (such as custody fees). Prospective investors should inform
themselves about any additional costs incurred in connection with the purchase, custody or sale of
the Notes before investing in the Notes.

A Noteholder's effective yield on the Notes may be diminished by the tax impact on that Noteholder of
its investment in the Notes.

Payments of interest on the Notes, or profits realised by the Noteholder upon the sale or repayment of
the Notes, may be subject to taxation in its home jurisdiction or in other jurisdictions in which it is
required to pay taxes. The tax impact on an individual Noteholder in respect of any Notes may differ
also in respect of Underlying Reference Linked Notes. BNPP and BNPP B.V. advise all investors to
contact their own tax advisors for advice on the tax impact of an investment in the Notes.

Fixed Rate Notes may change in value due to changes in interest rates

Investors in Fixed Rate Notes are exposed to the risk that subsequent changes in interest rates may
adversely affect the value of the Notes.

Noteholders will not be able to calculate in advance their rate of return on Floating Rate Notes.

A key difference between Floating Rate Notes and Fixed Rate Notes is that interest income on
Floating Rate Notes cannot be anticipated. Due to varying interest income, investors are not able to
determine a definite yield of Floating Rate Notes at the time they purchase them, so that their return
on investment cannot be compared with that of investments having longer fixed interest periods. If the
terms and conditions of the Notes provide for frequent interest payment dates, investors are exposed
to the reinvestment risk if market interest rates decline. That is, investors may reinvest the interest
income paid to them only at the relevant lower interest rates then prevailing. In addition, the Issuer's
ability to issue both Fixed Rate Notes may affect the market value and secondary market (if any) of
the Floating Rate Notes (and vice versa).

Zero Coupon Notes are subject to higher price fluctuations than non-discounted Notes.

Changes in market interest rates generally have a substantially stronger impact on the prices of Zero
Coupon Notes than on the prices of ordinary notes because the discounted issue prices are
substantially below par. If market interest rates increase, Zero Coupon Notes can suffer higher price
losses than other notes having the same maturity and credit rating.

Foreign currency Notes expose investors to foreign-exchange risk as well as to issuer risk.

Holders of Notes denominated in any currency other than their domestic currency are exposed to the
risk of changing foreign exchange rates. Similarly, beneficiaries of payments under the Guarantee
made in any currency other than their domestic currency are exposed to the risk of changing foreign
exchange rates. This risk is in addition to any performance risk that relates to the relevant Issuer or
the type of Note being issued.
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Holders of Subordinated Notes generally face a higher performance risk than holders of Senior Notes.

In the event of any insolvency or liquidation of BNPP, holders of Subordinated Notes would receive
payments on any outstanding Subordinated Notes only after senior Noteholders and other senior
creditors have been repaid in full, if and to the extent that there is still cash available for those
payments. Thus, holders of Subordinated Notes generally face a higher performance risk than
holders of senior Notes.

Issue of Subordinated Notes by BNPP — Future capital adequacy requirement for "Tier 2" instruments

On 17 December 2009, the Basel Committee proposed a number of fundamental reforms to the
regulatory capital framework in its consultative document entitled 'Strengthening the resilience of the
banking sector'. On 16 December 2010 and on 13 January 2011, the Basel Committee issued its final
guidance on Basel Ill. The Basel Ill reforms require "Tier 1" and "Tier 2" capital instruments to be
more loss-absorbing. The European Commission intends to adopt in the near future a capital
adequacy requirements text ("CRD IV") amending Directives no. 2006/48/EC of 14 June 2006 and no.
2006/49/EC of 14 June 2006 (together, "CRD I") and Directive no. 2009/111/EC of 16 September
2009 ("CRD II") which is expected to transpose the Basel Il reforms and will be applicable from 1
January 2013. The requirements will be subject to a series of transitional arrangements and will be
phased in over a period of time.

BNPP will not issue any Subordinated Notes under this Base Prospectus the proceeds of which are
intended to be eligible to its "Tier 2" capital until BNPP is comfortable that the provisions of the
Subordinated Notes as currently drafted in this Base Prospectus would be in compliance with such
implementing regulations (including any national transposition, if applicable, or whichever regulation
the Autorité de Contr6le Prudentiel deems necessary to include). A Supplement to this Base
Prospectus will be published by BNPP prior to any issue of Subordinated Notes under this Base
Prospectus.

Notes where denominations involve integral multiples

In relation to any issue of Notes which have denominations consisting of a minimum Specified
Denomination plus one or more higher integral multiples of another smaller amount, it is possible that
such Notes may be traded in amounts that are not integral multiples of such minimum Specified
Denomination. In such a case a holder who, as a result of trading such amounts, holds an amount
which is less than the minimum Specified Denomination in his account with the relevant clearing
system at the relevant time (i) may not be able to transfer such Notes and (ii) may not receive a
definitive Note in respect of such holding (should definitive Notes be printed) and in each case would
need to purchase a principal amount of Notes such that its holding amounts to a Specified
Denomination.

If definitive Notes are issued, holders should be aware that definitive Notes which have a
denomination that is not an integral multiple of the minimum Specified Denomination may be illiquid
and difficult to trade.

No Gross Up in respect of certain Series of Notes

In the case of Notes issued by BNPP B.V. and guaranteed by BNPP, if the applicable Final Terms
specify that Condition 6(b)(ii) is applicable, the Issuer or, as applicable, the Guarantor is not obliged to
gross up any payments in respect of the Notes and shall not be liable for or otherwise obliged to pay
any tax, duty, withholding or other payment which may arise as a result of the ownership, transfer,
presentation and surrender for payment, or enforcement of any Note and all payments made by the
Issuer or, as applicable, the Guarantor shall be made subject to any such tax, duty, withholding or
other payment which may be required to be made, paid, withheld or deducted.

Risks Relating to the Structure of a Particular Issue of Notes
Risks relating to Underlying Reference Linked Notes

Investments in Underlying Reference Linked Notes entail significant risks and may not be appropriate
for investors lacking financial expertise. Prospective investors should consult their own financial, tax
and legal advisors as to the risks entailed by an investment in such Notes and the suitability of such
Notes in light of their particular circumstances and ensure that its acquisition is fully consistent with
their financial needs and investment policies, is lawful under the laws of the jurisdiction of its
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incorporation and/or in which it operates, and is a suitable investment for it to make. The Issuers
believe that such Notes should only be purchased by investors who are, or who are purchasing under
the guidance of, financial institutions or other professional investors that are in a position to
understand the special risks that an investment in these instruments involves, in particular relating to
options and derivatives and related transactions, and should be prepared to sustain a total loss of the
purchase price of their Notes.

Underlying Reference Linked Notes are securities which do not provide for predetermined redemption
amounts and/or interest payments but amounts payable (whether in respect of principal and/or
interest) or deliverable will be dependent upon the performance of the Underlying Reference which
themselves may contain substantial credit, interest rate, foreign exchange, correlation, time value,
political and/or other risks. The exposure to the Underlying Reference in many cases will be achieved
by the Issuer entering into hedging arrangements. Potential investors should be aware that under the
terms of Underlying Reference Linked Notes they are exposed to the performance of these hedging
arrangements and the events that may affect these hedging arrangements and consequently the
occurrence of any of these events may affect the value of the Notes.

An investment in Underlying Reference Linked Notes therefore entails significant risks that are not
associated with similar investments in a conventional fixed or floating rate debt security. These risks
include, among other things, the possibility that:

. the Underlying Reference may be subject to significant changes, whether due to the
composition of any such Underlying Reference itself, or because of fluctuations in value of the
Underlying Reference;

o the resulting interest rate will be less (or may be more) than that payable on a conventional
debt security issued by the relevant Issuer at the same time;

. the holder of an Underlying Reference Linked Note could lose all or a substantial portion of
the principal of such Note (whether payable at maturity or upon redemption or repayment),
and, if the principal is lost, interest may cease to be payable on such Note;

. any Note that is linked to more than one type of Underlying Reference, or on formulae that
encompass the risks associated with more than one type of Underlying Reference, may carry
levels of risk that are greater than Notes that are indexed to one type of Underlying Reference
only;

. it may not be possible for investors to hedge their exposure to these various risks relating to
Underlying Reference Linked Notes; and

. a significant market disruption could mean that any Underlying Reference ceases to exist.

In addition, the value of Underlying Reference Linked Notes on the secondary market is subject to
greater levels of risk than is the value of other Notes and the market price of such Notes may be very
volatile or there may even be no (or very limited) secondary market at all. The secondary market, if
any, for Underlying Reference Linked Notes will be affected by a number of factors, independent of
the creditworthiness of the Issuer and/or the Guarantor (if applicable), the creditworthiness of any
reference entity, the value of the applicable Underlying Reference, including the volatility of the
Underlying Reference, the time remaining to the maturity of such Notes, the amount outstanding of
such Notes and market interest rates. The value of the applicable Underlying Reference, depends on
a number of interrelated factors, including economic, financial and political events, over which the
Issuers have no control.

Additionally, if the formula used to determine the amount of principal, premium and/or interest payable
with respect to Underlying Reference Linked Notes contains a weighting or leverage factor, the effect
of any change in the Underlying Reference will be increased. The historical experience of the
Underlying Reference should not be taken as an indication of future performance of such Underlying
Reference during the term of any such Note.

Additionally, there may be regulatory and other ramifications associated with the ownership by certain
investors of certain Underlying Reference Linked Notes.

BNPP, BNPP B.V. and their respective affiliates do not provide any advice with respect to any
Underlying Reference nor make any representation as to its quality, credit or otherwise, and investors
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in the Notes must rely on their own sources of analysis or credit analysis with respect to any
Underlying Reference.

The risks reflect the nature of such a Note as an asset which, other factors held constant, tends to
decline in value over time and which may become worthless when it expires or is redeemed. The risk
of the loss of some or all of the purchase price of an Underlying Reference Linked Note upon
redemption means that, in order to recover and realise a return upon his or her investment, a
purchaser of such Note must generally be correct about the direction, timing and magnitude of an
anticipated change in the value of the relevant Underlying Reference. Assuming all other factors are
held constant, the lower the value of an Underlying Reference Linked Note and the shorter the
remaining term of any such Note to redemption, the greater the risk that holders of such Notes will
lose all or part of their investment.

Risks relating to Index Linked Notes

Each Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon the level of an index or indices ("Index Linked Notes").

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Index
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion
of their investment. In addition, the movements in the level of the index or indices may be subject to
significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other
indices and the timing of changes in the relevant level of the index or indices may affect the actual
yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier
the change in the level of an index or result of a formula, the greater the effect on yield.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the level of
the index or the indices on principal or interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may depend on the time remaining to the
redemption date and the volatility of the level of the index or indices. The level of the index or indices
may be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions, including
the stock exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which any securities comprising the index or indices
may be traded. The index may reference equities, bonds or other securities, it may be a property
index referencing certain property price data which will be subject to market price fluctuations or
reference a number of different assets or indices. A property index may include valuations only and
not actual transactions and the property data sources used to compile the index may be subject to
change, which may adversely affect the return on the Notes.

Index Linked Notes linked to a custom index are linked to a proprietary index which may be
sponsored and/or calculated by BNP Paribas or one of its affiliates. Pursuant to the operational rules
of the relevant custom index, the custom index is scheduled to be calculated on a periodic basis (for
example on each weekday). In the event that one of the levels, values or prices of a component
included in the custom index is not available for any reason on a relevant day of calculation (e.qg.
either because it is a non-scheduled trading day in respect of that index component or that index
component is subject to market disruption or otherwise), then the Calculation Agent of the custom
index may, but is not obliged to, calculate the level of the custom index on that day by taking a value
for the affected index component from the first preceding day on which a level for such affected index
component was available.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Issuer and/or its affiliates may not be able to trade on and hedge its
obligations in respect of the custom index under the Notes notwithstanding the calculation of the level
of the custom index. In the event that a date for valuation is a Disrupted Day for the custom index,
date will be the first succeeding day on which the Issuer or relevant affiliate is able to trade on and
hedge it obligations in respect of the custom index, subject to a specified maximum days of disruption,
as more fully set out in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes.

Risks relating to Share Linked Notes

Each Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon the price of or changes in the price of shares, GDRs and/or ADRs or a basket of shares, GDRs
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and/or ADRs or, depending on the price of or change in the price of shares, GDRs or ADRs or the
basket of shares, GDRs and/or ADRs, the relevant Issuer's obligation on redemption is to deliver a
specified number of shares, GDRs and/or ADRs ("Share Linked Notes"). Accordingly an investment
in Share Linked Redemption Notes may bear similar market risks to a direct equity investment and
potential investors should take advice accordingly.

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Share
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest or delivery of any specified shares may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they
may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, the movements in the price of the
share, GDR and/or ADR or basket of shares, GDRs and/or ADRs may be subject to significant
fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the
timing of changes in the relevant price of the share(s), GDR(s) and/or ADR(s) may affect the actual
yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier
the change in the price of the share(s), GDR(s) and/or ADR(s), the greater the effect on yield.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the price of
the share(s), GDR(s) and/or ADR(s)on principal or interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may be affected by the time remaining to the
redemption date, the volatility of the share or shares, the dividend rate (if any) and the financial results
and prospects of the issuer or issuers of the relevant share or shares as well as economic, financial
and political events in one or more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the stock exchange(s) or
quotation system(s) on which any such shares may be traded.

Risks relating to Inflation Linked Notes

Each Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon the level of an inflation index or indices ("Inflation Linked Notes").

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Inflation
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion
of their investment. In addition, the movements in the level of the inflation index or indices may be
subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or
other indices and the timing of changes in the relevant level of the inflation index or indices may affect
the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general,
the earlier the change in the level of an inflation index or result of a formula, the greater the effect on
yield.

In certain circumstances following cessation of publication of the inflation index, the Calculation Agent
may determine that there is no appropriate alternative inflation index, in which case the relevant
Issuer may redeem the Notes. Such action may have an effect on the value of the Notes.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the level of
the inflation index or the indices on principal or interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may depend on the time remaining to the
redemption date and the volatility of the level of the inflation index or indices. The level of the inflation
index or indices may be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or more
jurisdictions.

Risks Relating to Commodity Linked Notes

Each Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon the price of or changes in the price of commodities and/or commodity indices or a basket of
commodities and/or commaodity indices or where, depending on the price of or change in the price of a
commodity or the basket of commodities, the relevant Issuer's obligation on redemption is to deliver a
specified commodity ("Commodity Linked Notes"). Accordingly an investment in Commodity Linked
Redemption Notes may bear similar market risks to a direct commodity investment and potential
investors should take advice accordingly.
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Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Commodity
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest or delivery of any specified commodities or commodity indices may occur at a different time
than expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, the
movements in the price of the commodity and/or commodity index or basket of commodities and/or
commodity indices may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in
interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the relevant price of a
commodity and/or commodity index may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level
is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price of the commodity
or commodity index, the greater the effect on yield.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the price of a
commodity and/or commodity index on principal or interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may be affected by the time remaining to the
redemption date and the volatility of the price of the commodity and/or commodity index. The price of
commodities or level of a commodity index may be affected by economic, financial and political events
in one or more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on
which the relevant commodities or components of the commodity indices may be traded.

Risks relating to Fund Linked Notes

Each Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon the price or changes in the price of units or shares in a fund or funds or, depending on the price
or changes in the price of units or shares in such fund or funds, the relevant Issuer's obligation on
redemption is to deliver a specified amount of Fund Shares ("Fund Linked Notes"). Accordingly an
investment in Fund Linked Redemption Notes may bear similar market risks to a direct fund
investment and potential investors should take advice accordingly.

Prospective investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Fund
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest or delivery of any specified Fund Shares may occur at a different time than expected and (iii)
they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, the movements in the price of
units, shares or interests in the fund or funds may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not
correlate with changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the
relevant price of the units or shares in the fund or funds may affect the actual yield to investors, even
if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price
or prices of the units, shares or interests in the fund or funds, the greater the effect on yield.

In the event that redemption proceeds in respect of the underlying Fund Shares are not received by
the Hedge Provider on or prior to the scheduled redemption date or termination date, such date may
be postponed for a period of up to two calendar years (or such other period as may be specified in the
applicable Final Terms) and no additional amount shall be payable as a result of such delay.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the price of
the units or shares of the fund or funds on principal or interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may depend on the time remaining to the
redemption date and the volatility of the price of units or shares in the fund or funds. The price of
units or shares in a fund may be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or
more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which any
units in the fund or funds may be traded. In addition, the price of units or shares in a fund may be
affected by the performance of the fund service providers, and in particular the investment adviser.

Prospective investors should review carefully the prospectus, information memorandum and/or
offering circular (if any) issued by any relevant fund before purchasing any Notes. None of the Issuer,
the Guarantor (if applicable), any affiliate of the Issuer or Guarantor (if applicable) or the Calculation
Agent make any representation as to the creditworthiness of any relevant fund or any such fund's
administrative, custodian, investment manager or adviser.
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No Fund Service Provider will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in
establishing the terms of the Fund Linked Notes, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable)
or any Dealer will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to
any information concerning any such issuer of fund shares or units contained in such Final Terms or
in the documents from which such information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no
assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date (including events that would affect
the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information described in this paragraph or in
any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of the fund shares or units will have been
publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to
disclose material future events concerning such an issuer of fund shares or units could affect the
trading price of the fund shares or units and therefore the trading price of the Notes. Fund Linked
Notes do not provide Holders with any participation rights in the underlying Fund(s) and except in
certain circumstances in the case of Physical Delivery Notes, do not entitle holders of Fund Linked
Notes to any ownership interest or rights in such Fund(s).

Except as provided in the Conditions, Noteholders will not have voting rights or rights to receive
dividends or distributions or any other rights with respect to the relevant fund shares or units to which
such Notes relate.

Risks relating to Credit Linked Notes

The Issuers may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon whether certain events ("Credit Events") have occurred in respect of one or more Reference
Entity and, if so, on the value of certain specified assets of such Reference Entity/Entities or where, if
such events have occurred, on redemption the relevant Issuer's obligation is to deliver certain
specified assets.

Prospective investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the Credit
Linked Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or
interest or delivery of any specified assets may occur at a different time than expected and (iii) they
may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and will be affected by, amongst other things, the time
remaining to the redemption date and the creditworthiness of the reference entity which in turn may
be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions.

Where the Notes provide for physical delivery, the relevant Issuer may determine that the specified
assets to be delivered are either (a) assets which for any reason (including, without limitation, failure
of the relevant clearance system or due to any law, regulation, court order or market conditions or the
non-receipt of any requisite consents with respect to the delivery of assets which are loans) it is
impossible or illegal to deliver on the specified settlement date or (b) assets which the relevant Issuer
and/or any affiliate has not received under the terms of any transaction entered into by the relevant
Issuer and/or such affiliate to hedge the relevant Issuer's obligations in respect of the Notes. Any
such determination may delay settlement in respect of the Notes and/or cause the obligation to deliver
such specified assets to be replaced by an obligation to pay a cash amount which, in either case, may
affect the value of the Notes and, in the case of payment of a cash amount, will affect the timing of the
valuation of such Notes and as a result, the amount of principal payable on redemption. Prospective
Investors should review the Terms and Conditions of the Notes and the applicable Final Terms to
ascertain whether and how such provisions should apply to the Notes.

The relevant Issuer's obligations in respect of Credit Linked Notes are irrespective of the existence or
amount of the relevant Issuer's and/or any affiliates' credit exposure to a reference entity and the
Issuer and/or any affiliate need not suffer any loss nor provide evidence of any loss as a result of the
occurrence of a Credit Event.

Additional Risk Factors for Credit-Linked Notes
Credit risk on Reference Entities

The holders of Credit linked Notes will be exposed to the credit of one or more Reference Entities,
which exposure shall be, unless otherwise stated in the applicable Final Terms, to the full extent of
their investment in such Notes. Upon the occurrence of any of the default events comprising a Credit
Event with respect to any Reference Entity, the Noteholders may suffer significant losses at a time
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when losses may be suffered by a direct investor in obligations of such Reference Entity. However,
the holding of a Note is unlikely to lead to outcomes which exactly reflect the impact of investing in an
obligation of a Reference Entity, and losses could be considerably greater than would be suffered by
a direct investor in the obligations of a Reference Entity and/or could arise for reasons unrelated to
such Reference Entity. Noteholders should also note that a Credit Event may occur even if the
obligations of a Reference Entity are unenforceable or their performance is prohibited by any
applicable law or exchange controls.

Where cash settlement or auction settlement applies, the occurrence of a Credit Event in relation to
any Reference Entity from time to time may result in a redemption of the Notes in a reduced principal
amount or at zero, and, (if applicable) in a reduction of the amount on which interest is calculated.
Where physical settlement applies, the occurrence of a Credit Event may result in the redemption of
the Notes based on the valuation (or by delivery) of certain direct or indirect obligations of the affected
Reference Entity, which obligations are likely to have a market value which is substantially less than
their par amount.

Investors in the Notes are accordingly exposed, as to both principal and (if applicable) interest, to the
credit risk of the Reference Entity. The maximum loss to an investor in the Notes is 100 per cent. of
their initial principal investment, together with (if applicable) any interest amounts.

Credit observation period

Holders of the Notes may suffer a loss of some or all of the principal amount of the Notes in respect of
one or more Credit Events that occur prior to the Trade Date or the Issue Date. Neither the
Calculation Agent or the Issuer nor any of their respective affiliates has any responsibility to inform
any Noteholder, or avoid or mitigate the effects of a Credit Event that has taken place prior to the
Trade Date or the Issue Date.

Increased credit risk in "Nth-to-default" credit-linked Notes

Where the Notes are Nth-to-Default CLNs, the Notes will be subject to redemption in full as described
above upon the occurrence of a Credit Event in relation to the nth Reference Entity. The credit risk to
Noteholders may therefore be increased as a result of the concentration of Reference Entities in a
particular industry sector or geographic area or the exposure of the Reference Entities to similar
financial or other risks.

Concentration of credit risk

Where the Notes are Nth-to-Default CLNs or Linear Basket CLNs, the credit risk to investors in the
Notes may be increased, amongst other things, as a result of the concentration of Reference Entities
in a particular industry sector or geographic area, or the exposure of the Reference Entities to similar
financial or other risks as other Reference Entities.

Issuer and Calculation Agent rights

The Issuer will exercise its rights under the terms of the Notes, including in particular the right to
designate a Credit Event and the right to select obligations of the affected Reference Entity for
valuation or delivery, in its own interests and those of its affiliates, and not in the interests of investors
in the Notes. The exercise of such rights in such manner, for example by the selection of the eligible
obligations of the Reference Entity having the lowest possible market value for valuation or delivery,
as applicable, may result in an increased credit loss for holders of the Notes.

The determination by the Calculation Agent of any amount or of any state of affairs, circumstance,
event or other matter, or the formation of any opinion or the exercise of any discretion required or
permitted to be determined, formed or exercised by the Calculation Agent shall (in the absence of
manifest error) be final and binding on the Noteholders. In performing its duties pursuant to the Notes
and making any determinations expressed to be made by it, for example, as to substitute Reference
Obligations or Successors, the Calculation Agent shall act in its sole and absolute discretion and is
under no obligation to act in the interests of the Noteholders, nor will it be liable to account for any
profit or other benefit which may accrue to it as a result of such determinations. The Calculation Agent
is not bound to follow, or act in accordance with, any determination of the relevant Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee.
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Actions of Reference Entities

Actions of Reference Entities (for example, merger or demerger or the repayment or transfer of
indebtedness) may adversely affect the value of the Notes. Holders of the Notes should be aware that
the Reference Entities to which the value of the Notes is exposed, and the terms of such exposure,
may change over the terms of the Notes.

Deferral of payments

In certain circumstances, for example where (i) a Credit Event has occurred and the related credit loss
has not been determined as at the relevant date for payment, (ii) where a potential Credit Event exists
as at the scheduled maturity of the Notes, or (iii) pending a resolution of a Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee, payment of the redemption amount of the Notes and/or interest on the
Notes may be deferred for a material period in whole or part without compensation to the holders of
the Notes.

Valuation

If the Notes are cash settled, then, following the occurrence of a Credit Event, the Calculation Agent
will be required to seek quotations in respect of selected obligations of the affected Reference Entity.
Quotations obtained will be "bid-side" - that is, they will be reduced to take account of a bid-offer
spread charged by the relevant dealer. Such quotations may not be available, or the level of such
quotations may be substantially reduced as a result of illiquidity in the relevant markets or as a result
of factors other than the credit risk of the affected Reference Entity (for example, liquidity constraints
affecting market dealers). Accordingly, any quotations so obtained may be significantly lower than the
value of the relevant obligation which would be determined by reference to (for example) the present
value of related cash flows. Quotations will be deemed to be zero in the event that no such quotations
are available.

Where credit losses are determined on the basis of a market protocol, such losses may be greater
than the losses which would have been determined in the absence of such protocol. If the Calculation
Agent or any affiliate thereof participates in any auction for the purposes of such a protocol, then it will
do so without regard to the interests of the holders of the Notes. Such participation may have a
material effect on the outcome of the relevant auction.

"Cheapest-to-Deliver"” risk

Since the Issuer, as buyer of protection, has discretion to choose the portfolio of obligations to be
valued or delivered following a Credit Event in respect of a Reference Entity where Cash or Physical
Settlement apply, it is likely that the portfolio of obligations selected will be obligations of the
Reference Entity with the lowest market value that are permitted to be selected pursuant to the Notes.
This could result in a lower recovery value and hence greater losses for investors in the Notes.

No information

The Issuer and the Calculation Agent are not obliged to disclose to holders of the Notes any
information which they may have at the Issue Date or receive thereafter in relation to any Reference
Entity.

Compounding of risks
Various risks relating to the Notes may be correlated or compounded and such correlation and/or

compounding may result in increased volatility in the value of the Notes and/or in increased losses for
holders of the Notes.

No need for loss

Where the Notes are Single Reference Entity CLNs, Nth-to-Default CLNs or Linear Basket CLNs,
credit losses will be calculated for the purposes of the Notes irrespective of whether the Issuer or its
affiliates has suffered an actual loss in relation to the Reference Entity or any obligations thereof. The
Issuer is not obliged to account for any recovery which it may subsequently make in relation to such
Reference Entity or its obligations.
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No interest in obligations of Reference Entities

The Notes do not constitute an acquisition by the holders of the Notes of any interest in any obligation
of a Reference Entity. The Issuer does not grant any security interest over any such obligation.

Absence of benchmarks for valuation

In determining the value of the Notes, dealers may take into account the level of a related credit index
in addition to or as an alternative to other sources of pricing data. If any relevant index ceases to be
liquid, or ceases to be published in its entirety, then the value of the Notes may be adversely affected.

Historical performance may not predict future performance

Individual Reference Entities may not perform as indicated by the historical performance of similar
entities and no assurance can be given with respect to the future performance of any Reference
Entities. Historical default statistics may not capture events that would constitute Credit Events for the
purposes of the Notes.

Limited provision of information about the Reference Entities

This Prospectus does not provide any information with respect to the Reference Entities. Investors
should conduct their own investigation and analysis with respect to the creditworthiness of Reference
Entities and the likelihood of the occurrence of a Succession Event or Credit Event.

Reference Entities may not be subject to regular reporting requirements under United Kingdom
securities laws. The Reference Entities may report information in accordance with different disclosure
and accounting standards. Consequently, the information available for such Reference Entities may
be different from, and in some cases less than, the information available for entities that are subject to
the reporting requirements under the United Kingdom securities laws. None of the Issuer or the
Calculation Agent or any of their respective affiliates make any representation as to the accuracy or
completeness of any information available with respect to the Reference Entities.

None of the Issuer or the Calculation Agent or any of their respective affiliates will have any obligation
to keep investors informed as to any matters with respect to the Reference Entities or any of their
obligations, including whether or not circumstances exist that give rise to the possibility of the
occurrence of a Credit Event or a Succession Event with respect to the Reference Entities.

Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee and Market Auctions

The institutions of the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee owe no duty to the Noteholders
and have the ability to make determinations that may materially affect the Noteholders, such as the
occurrence of a Credit Event or a Succession Event. The Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee may be able to make determinations without action or knowledge of the Noteholders.

Noteholders may have no role in the composition of the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee.
Separate criteria apply with respect to the selection of dealer and non-dealer institutions to serve on
the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee and the Noteholders may have no role in
establishing such criteria. In addition, the composition of the Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee will change from time to time in accordance with the Rules, as the term of an institution
may expire or an institution may be required to be replaced. The Noteholders may have no control
over the process for selecting institutions to participate on the Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee and, to the extent provided for in the Notes, will be subject to the determinations made by
such selected institutions in accordance with the Rules.

Noteholders may have no recourse against either the institutions serving on the Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee or the external reviewers. Institutions serving on the Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee and the external reviewers, among others, disclaim any duty of care or
liability arising in connection with the performance of duties or the provision of advice under the Rules,
except in the case of gross negligence, fraud or wilful misconduct. Furthermore, the institutions on the
Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee do not owe any duty to the Noteholders and the
Noteholders will be prevented from pursuing claims with respect to actions taken by such institutions
under the Rules.

Noteholders should also be aware that institutions serving on the Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee have no duty to research or verify the veracity of information on which a specific
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determination is based. In addition, the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee is not obligated
to follow previous determinations and, therefore, could reach a conflicting determination on a similar
set of facts. If the Issuer or the Calculation Agent or any of their respective affiliates serve as a
member of the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee at any time, then they will act without
regard to the interests of the Noteholders.

Noteholders are responsible for obtaining information relating to deliberations of the Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee. Notices of questions referred to the Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee, meetings held to deliberate such questions and the results of binding votes will be
published on the ISDA website and neither the Issuer, the Calculation Agent nor any of their
respective affiliates shall be obliged to inform the Noteholders of such information (other than as
expressly provided in respect of the Notes. Failure by the Noteholders to be aware of information
relating to deliberations of a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee will have no effect under
the Notes and Noteholders are solely responsible for obtaining any such information.

Investors should read the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees Rules set forth in Annex A to
the 2009 ISDA Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees and Auction Settlement Supplement to
the 2003 ISDA Credit Derivatives Definitions (published on March 12, 2009), as they exist as of the
date of this Prospectus, and reach their own views prior to making any investment decisions.
Investors should however note that the Rules may be amended from time to time without the consent
or input of the Noteholders and the powers of the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee may
be expanded or modified as a result.

If a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee publishes auction settlement terms in respect of a
Reference Entity (and the relevant seniority of the Reference Obligation), then, if auction settlement
applies to the Notes, the Calculation Agent will determine the Final Price of the Reference Obligation
in accordance with such auction settlement terms and may amend any other terms of the Swap
Agreement to be consistent with the provisions of such auction settlement terms. The losses
determined pursuant to a market auction process may be greater than the losses which would have
been determined in the absence of the auction. In particular, the auction process may be affected by
technical factors or operational errors which would not otherwise apply or may be the subject of actual
or attempted manipulation. Auctions may be conducted by ISDA or by a relevant third party. Neither
the Calculation Agent, the Issuer nor any of their respective affiliates has any responsibility for
verifying that any auction price is reflective of current market values, for establishing any auction
methodology or for verifying that any auction has been conducted in accordance with its rules. If the
Calculation Agent or the Issuer or any of their respective affiliate thereof participates in any auction,
then it will do so without regard to the interests of the holders of the Notes. Such participation may
have a material effect on the outcome of the relevant auction.

"Restructuring Maturity Limitation and Fully Transferable Obligation" and "Modified Restructuring
Maturity Limitation and Conditionally Transferable Obligation”

In respect of a Reference Entity for which Restructuring is applicable and either "Restructuring
Maturity Limitation and Fully Transferable Obligation" or "Modified Restructuring Maturity Limitation
and Conditionally Transferable Obligation" is specified as applicable (such Restructuring Credit Event,
a "Mod/ModMod R Restructuring"), upon the occurrence of such Mod/ModMod R Restructuring
Credit Event, several concurrent but separate Auctions may occur with respect to such Mod/ModMod
R Restructuring and such Reference Entity, as determined by the relevant Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee.

Upon the occurrence of such Mod/ModMod R Restructuring and prior to 65 Business Days following
the Final List Publication Date, the Swap Counterparty will determine whether the Transaction Auction
Settlement Terms or any Parallel Auction Settlement Terms relating to such Auctions taking place are
applicable to the Notes. In the event that one or more of the Transaction Auction Settlement Terms
and Parallel Auction Settlement Terms is applicable to the Notes, the Swap Counterparty may elect
such settlement terms as applicable by giving an Auction Settlement Amount Notice to the Issuer, the
Trustee and the Calculation Agent. In making such determination and such selection, the Swap
Counterparty will act in its own interests and those of its Affiliates, and not in the interests of the
investors — which may result in the selection of settlement terms less favourable to the investors. If
the Swap Counterparty does not give such Auction Settlement Amount Notice within the stipulated
period, the Notes shall be settled in accordance with the Fallback Settlement Method.
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The Auction Final Price or Weighted Average Final Price may be based on one or more obligations of
the Reference Entity having a final maturity date different from that of the Restructured Bond or Loan
or any specified Reference Obligation— which may affect the Auction Settlement Amount determined
in respect of the Notes.

"Non-delivery of Deliverable Obligations and Hedge Disruption Event"

Where Physical Settlement is the applicable Settlement Method, if as a result of a Hedge Disruption
Event, the Issuer and/or any of its Affiliates have not received the Deliverable Obligations and/or cash
under the terms of a Hedge Transaction, such event shall not constitute an Event of Default for the
purposes of the Notes. In such circumstances settlement of the Notes, may be substantially delayed
and/or may be in cash (in whole or in part).

Modification of the terms of the Notes

The Calculation Agent may, following its determination that there has been a change in the prevailing
market standard terms or market trading conventions that affects any hedging transaction, modify the
terms of the Notes to the extent necessary to preserve any consistency between the Notes and the
hedging transaction. If the Calculation Agent modifies the terms of the Notes, it will do so without
regard to the interests of the holders of the Notes and any such modification may be prejudicial to the
interests of the holder of the Notes.

Risks relating to ETI Linked Notes

Each Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon the price of or changes in the price of interests in exchange traded instruments or a basket of
interests in exchange traded instruments or, depending on the price of or change in the price of
interests in exchange traded instruments or the basket of interests in exchange traded instruments,
the relevant Issuer's obligation on redemption is to deliver a specified number of interests in exchange
traded instruments ("ETI Linked Notes"). Accordingly an investment in ETI Linked Redemption
Notes may bear similar market risks to a direct exchange traded instrument investment and potential
investors should take advice accordingly.

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that depending on the terms of the ETI Linked
Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of principal or interest or
delivery of any specified interests in exchange traded instruments may occur at a different time than
expected and (iii) they may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, the
movements in the price of the interests in exchange traded instruments or basket of interests in
exchange traded instruments may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with
changes in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the timing of changes in the relevant price of
the interests in exchange traded instruments or the basket of interests in exchange traded
instruments may affect the actual yield to investors, even if the average level is consistent with their
expectations. In general, the earlier the change in the price of the interests in exchange traded
instruments or the basket of interests in exchange traded instruments, the greater the effect on yield.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are determined in conjunction with a multiplier
greater than one or by reference to some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the price of
the exchange traded instruments on principal or interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and may be affected by the time remaining to the
redemption date, the volatility of the interests in the exchange traded instruments or the basket of
interests in exchange traded instruments, the dividend or distribution rate (if any) and the financial
results and prospects of the relevant interests in exchange traded instruments or the relevant basket
of interests in exchange traded instruments as well as economic, financial and political events in one
or more jurisdictions, including factors affecting the stock exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on
which any such interests in exchange traded instruments may be traded.

Whilst interests in exchange traded instruments are traded on an exchange and are therefore valued
in a similar manner as a share traded on an exchange, certain provisions related to ETI Linked Notes
are similar to the provisions related to funds and Fund Linked Notes.

In the case of ETI Linked Notes, no exchange traded instrument will have participated in the
preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in establishing the terms of the ETI Linked Notes, and none
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of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or any Dealer will make any investigation or enquiry in
connection with such offering with respect to any information concerning any such exchange traded
instrument contained in such Final Terms or in the documents from which such information was
extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant
issue date (including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available
information described in this paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading
price of the interests in the exchange traded instruments will have been publicly disclosed.
Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future
events concerning such exchange traded instrument could affect the trading price of interests in the
exchange traded instrument and therefore the trading price of the Notes. ETI Linked Notes do not
provide Holders with any participation rights in the underlying ETI(s) and, except in certain
circumstances in the case of Physical Delivery Notes, do not entitle holders of ETI Linked Notes to
any ownership interest or rights in such ETI(s).

Except as provided in the Conditions, holders will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends
or distributions or any other rights with respect to the relevant exchange traded instruments to which
such Notes relate.

Risks relating to Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Linked Notes

Each Issuer may issue Notes where the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent
upon movements in currency exchange rates or are payable in one or more currencies which may be
different from the currency in which the Notes are denominated ("Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate
Notes"). Accordingly an investment in Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Redemption Notes may bear
similar market risks to a direct foreign exchange investment and potential investors should take advice
accordingly.

Potential investors in any such Notes should be aware that, depending on the terms of the Foreign
Exchange (FX) Rate Notes (i) they may receive no or a limited amount of interest, (ii) payment of
principal or interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than expected and (iii) they
may lose a substantial portion of their investment. In addition, movements in currency exchange rates
may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes in interest rates or other
indices and the timing of changes in the exchange rates may affect the actual yield to investors, even
if the average level is consistent with their expectations. In general, the earlier the change in currency
exchange rates, the greater the effect on yield.

Exchange rates between currencies are determined by factors of supply and demand in the
international currency markets which are influenced by macro economic factors, speculation and
central bank and government intervention (including the imposition of currency controls and
restrictions). In recent years, rates of exchange between some currencies have been volatile. This
volatility may be expected in the future. Fluctuations that have occurred in any particular exchange
rate in the past are not necessarily indicative, however, of fluctuation that may occur in the rate during
the term of any Note. Fluctuations in exchange rates will affect the value of Foreign Exchange (FX)
Rate Notes.

If the amount of principal and/or interest payable are dependent upon movements in currency
exchange rates and are determined in conjunction with a multiplier greater than one or by reference to
some other leverage factor, the effect of changes in the currency exchange rates on principal or
interest payable will be magnified.

The market price of such Notes may be volatile and, if the amount of principal and/or interest payable
is dependent upon movements in currency exchange rates, may depend upon the time remaining to
the redemption date and the volatility of currency exchange rates. Movements in currency exchange
rates may be dependent upon economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions.

Additional Factors relating to certain Underlying References:
Adjustment to indices

Where the Underlying Reference is an index (including a commodity index) if an index adjustment
event (as described in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes) occurs the relevant Issuer may require
the Calculation Agent to make such adjustments as it determines appropriate to the terms of the
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Notes or redeem the Notes. Such action may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the
affected Underlying Reference Linked Notes.

Additional Factors relating to Share Linked Notes.

In the case of Share Linked Notes following the declaration by the Basket Company or Share
Company, as the case may be, of the terms of any Potential Adjustment Event, the Calculation Agent
will, in its sole and absolute discretion, determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has a
diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the Shares and, if so, will (i) make the
corresponding adjustment, if any, to any one or more of any Relevant Asset and/or the Entitlement
and/or the Weighting and/or any of the other terms of the Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable
Final Terms as the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion determines appropriate to
account for that diluting or concentrative effect (provided that no adjustments will be made to account
solely for changes in volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relative to the relevant
Share) and (ii) determine the effective date of that adjustment. Such adjustment may have an adverse
effect on the value and liquidity of the affected Share Linked Notes.

If an Extraordinary Event occurs in relation to a Share, the relevant Issuer in its sole and absolute
discretion may take the action described in (i), (i), (iii), (iv) (if applicable), (v) or, in the case of Notes
relating to a Basket of Shares only, (vi) below:

(i) require the Calculation Agent to determine in its sole and absolute discretion the appropriate
adjustment, if any, to be made to any one or more of any Relevant Asset and/or the
Entitlement (in each case where the Notes are Physical Delivery Notes) and/or the Weighting
and/or any of the other terms of these Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final
Terms to account for the relevant Extraordinary Event, and determine the effective date of
that adjustment. The relevant adjustments may include, without limitation, adjustments to
account for changes in volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relevant to the
Shares or to the Notes. The Calculation Agent may (but need not) determine the appropriate
adjustment by reference to the adjustment in respect of the relevant Extraordinary Event
made by any options exchange to options on the Shares traded on that options exchange In
addition, in relation to a Basket of Shares, the Calculation Agent may adjust the Basket of
Shares in accordance with the provisions of sub-paragraph (vi) below; or

(i) in the case of Share Linked Notes relating to a Basket of Shares, redeem the Notes in part by
giving notice to Noteholders in accordance with General Condition 12. If the Notes are so
redeemed in part the portion (the "Redeemed Amount") of each Note representing the
affected Share(s) shall be redeemed and the Issuer will:

(a) pay to each Noteholder in respect of each Note held by him an amount equal to the
fair market value of the Redeemed Amount, taking into account the relevant
Extraordinary Event, less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding any
underlying related hedging arrangements, all as determined by the Calculation Agent
in its sole and absolute discretion; and

(b) require the Calculation Agent to determine in its sole and absolute discretion the
appropriate adjustment, if any, to be made to any one or more of any Relevant Asset
and/or the Entitlement (in each case where the Notes are Physical Delivery Notes)
and/or the Weighting and/or any of the other terms of these Terms and Conditions
and/or the applicable Final Terms to account for such redemption in part. For the
avoidance of doubt the remaining part of each Note after such cancellation and
adjustment shall remain outstanding with full force and effect. Payments will be made
in such manner as shall be notified to the Noteholders in accordance with General
Condition 12;

(iii) unless Delayed Redemption on the Occurrence of an Extraordinary Event is specified as
being applicable in the applicable Final Terms, on giving notice to Noteholders in accordance
with General Condition 12, redeem all but not some only of the Notes, each Note being
redeemed by payment of an amount equal to the fair market value of a Note taking into
account the relevant Extraordinary Event, less the cost to the Issuer and/or its affiliates of
unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements, all as determined by the Calculation
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(iv)

(vi)

Agent in its sole and absolute discretion. Payments will be made in such manner as shall be
notified to the Noteholders in accordance with General Condition 12;

if Delayed Redemption on the Occurrence of an Extraordinary Event is specified as being
applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Calculation Agent shall calculate the fair market
value of each Note taking into account the relevant Extraordinary Event, less the cost to the
Issuer and/or its affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements (the
"Calculated Extraordinary Event Amount") as soon as practicable following the occurrence
of the relevant Extraordinary Event (the "Calculated Extraordinary Event Amount
Determination Date") and on the Maturity Date shall redeem each Note at an amount
calculated by the Calculation Agent equal to (x) the Calculated Extraordinary Event Amount
plus interest accrued from and including the Calculated Extraordinary Event Amount
Determination Date to but excluding the Maturity Date at a rate equal to Issuer's funding cost
at such time or (y) if Principal Protected Termination Amount is specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms and if greater, its nominal amount;

following such adjustment to the settlement terms of options on the Shares traded on such
exchange(s) or quotation system(s) as the Issuer in its sole discretion shall select (the
"Options Exchange"), require the Calculation Agent to make a corresponding adjustment to
any one or more of any Relevant Asset and/or the Entitlement (in each case where the Notes
are Physical Delivery Notes) and/or the Weighting and/or any of the other terms of these
Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms, which adjustment will be effective
as of the date determined by the Calculation Agent to be the effective date of the
corresponding adjustment made by the Options Exchange. If options on the Shares are not
traded on the Options Exchange, the Calculation Agent will make such adjustment, if any, to
any one or more of any Relevant Asset and/or the Entitlement (in each case where the Notes
are Physical Delivery Notes) and/or the Weighting and/or any of the other terms of these
Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms as the Calculation Agent in its sole
and absolute discretion determines appropriate, with reference to the rules and precedents (if
any) set by the Options Exchange to account for the relevant Extraordinary Event, that in the
determination of the Calculation Agent would have given rise to an adjustment by the Options
Exchange if such options were so traded; or

on or after the relevant Extraordinary Event Effective Date, the Calculation Agent may adjust
the Basket of Shares to include a Share selected by it in accordance with the criteria for
Share selection set out below (each, a "Substitute Share") for each Share (each, an
"Affected Share") of each Basket Company (each, an "Affected Basket Company") which is
affected by such Extraordinary Event and the Substitute Share will be deemed to be a
"Share" and the relevant issuer of such shares, a "Share Company" or a "Basket Company"
for the purposes of the Notes, and the Calculation Agent will make such adjustment, if any, to
any one or more of any Relevant Asset and/or the Entitlement (in each case where the Notes
are Physical Delivery Notes) and/or the Weighting and/or any of the other terms of these
Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms as the Calculation Agent in its sole
and absolute discretion determines appropriate, provided that in the event that any amount
payable under the Notes was to be determined by reference to the Initial Price of the Affected
Share, the Initial Price of each Substitute Share will be determined by the Calculation Agent in
accordance with the following formula:

Initial Price=Ax (B / C)
where:

"A" is the official closing price of the relevant Substitute Share on the relevant Exchange on
the Substitution Date;

"B" is the Initial Price of the relevant Affected Share; and

"C" is the official closing price of the relevant Affected Share on the relevant Exchange on the
Substitution Date.

Such substitution and the relevant adjustment to the Basket of Shares will be deemed to be
effective as of the date selected by the Calculation Agent (the "Substitution Date") in its sole
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and absolute discretion and specified in the notice referred below which may, but need not,
be the relevant Extraordinary Event Effective Date.

The Weighting of each Substitute Share in the Basket of Shares will be equal to the
Weighting of the relevant Affected Share.

In order to be selected as a Substitute Share, the relevant share must satisfy the following
criteria, in the sole and absolute discretion of the Calculation Agent:

(a) where the relevant Extraordinary Event is a Merger Event or a Tender Offer and the
relevant share is not already included in the Basket of Shares, the relevant share
shall be an ordinary share of the entity or person (other than the Affected Basket
Company) involved in the Merger Event or the making of the Tender Offer, that is, or
that as of the relevant Extraordinary Event Effective Date is promptly scheduled to be,
(i) publicly quoted, traded or listed on an exchange or quotation system located in the
same country as the relevant Exchange (or, where the relevant Exchange is within
the European Union, in any member state of the European Union) and (ii) not subject
to any currency exchange controls, trading restrictions or other trading limitations; or

(b) where the relevant Extraordinary Event is a Merger Event or a Tender Offer and a
share would otherwise satisfy the criteria set out in paragraph (a) above, but such
share is already included in the Basket of Shares, or in the case of an Extraordinary
Event other than a Merger Event or a Tender Offer:

(1) the relevant issuer of the share shall belong to the same economic sector as
the Affected Basket Company; and

(2) the relevant issuer of the share shall have a comparable market
capitalisation, international standing and exposure as the Affected Basket
Company in respect of the Affected Share.

Market Disruption Events or Failure to Open of an Exchange

If an issue of Underlying Reference Linked Notes includes provisions dealing with the occurrence of a
Market Disruption Event or failure to open of an exchange on the Strike Date, a Valuation Date,
Observation Date or an Averaging Date and the Calculation Agent determines that a Market
Disruption Event or failure to open of an exchange has occurred or exists on such date, any
consequential postponement of the Strike Date, Valuation Date, Observation Date or Averaging Date
or any alternative provisions for valuation provided in any such Notes may have an adverse effect on
the value and liquidity of such Notes. The timing of such dates (as scheduled or as so postponed or
adjusted) may affect the value of the relevant Notes such that the Noteholder may receive a lower
cash redemption amount and/or interest amount or other payment under the relevant Notes than
otherwise would have been the case. The occurrence of such a Market Disruption Event or failure to
open of an exchange in relation to any Underlying Reference comprising a basket may also have
such an adverse effect on Notes related to such basket. In addition, any such consequential
postponement may result in the postponement of the date of redemption of the Notes.

Additional factors relating to ETI Linked Notes

ETI Linked Notes linked to one or more interests in exchange traded instruments reflect the
performance of such interests in exchange traded instruments.

An exchange traded instrument may invest in and trade in a variety of investments and financial
instruments using sophisticated investment techniques for hedging and non-hedging purposes. Such
financial instruments and investment techniques may include, but are not limited to, the use of
leverage, short sales of securities, derivative transactions, such as swaps, stock options, index
options, futures contracts and options on futures, lending of securities to certain financial institutions,
entry into repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements for securities and the investment in foreign
securities and foreign currencies.

The amount payable on ETI Linked Notes will be dependent on the performance of the relevant ETI(s)
underlying the ETI Linked Notes, which may be linked to the reported Net Asset Value per ETI
Interest, the trading price available on an exchange for the relevant ETI Interest and/or the actual
redemption proceeds the Hedge Provider or a hypothetical investor in the relevant ETI(s) would
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receive. The amount payable on the ETI Linked Notes may be less and in certain circumstances may
be significantly less than the return from a direct investment in the relevant ETI(s) and may be zero.

Unlike Funds, exchange traded instruments are not actively managed. The value of an interest in an
exchange traded instrument will decline, more or less, in line with the decline of any securities or the
value of any index underlying or linked to the relevant exchange traded instrument. Exchange traded
instruments involve risks similar to those of investing in equity securities traded on an exchange, such
as market fluctuations caused by, amongst other things, economic and political developments,
changes in interest rates and perceived trends in prices of securities. Where the relevant exchange
traded instrument is linked to a particular index, the return on such exchange traded instrument may
not match the return of the particular index.

Potential investors in ETI Linked Notes should be aware that none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if
applicable) or the Calculation Agent have any control over investments made by the relevant
exchange traded instrument(s) and in no way guarantee the performance of an exchange traded
instrument or the amount payable to holders of ETI Linked Notes.

In hedging the Issuer’s obligations under the ETI Linked Notes, the Hedge Provider is not restricted to
any particular hedging practice. Accordingly, the Hedge Provider may hedge its exposure using any
method it, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate, including, but not limited to, investing in the
relevant exchange traded instrument(s), replicating the performance of the relevant exchange traded
instrument(s) or holding any of the assets underlying the relevant exchange traded instrument(s). The
Hedge Provider may perform any number of different hedging practices with respect to ETI Linked
Notes.

Investing directly or indirectly in interests in exchange traded instruments is generally considered to
be risky. If the exchange traded instrument does not perform sufficiently well, the value of the Notes
will fall, and may in certain circumstances be zero.

Prospective investors should review carefully the prospectus, information memorandum and/or
offering circular (if any) issued by any relevant exchange traded instrument before purchasing any ETI
Linked Notes. None of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if any), the Calculation Agent or any of their
respective Affiliates make any representation as to the creditworthiness of any relevant exchange
traded instrument or any such exchange traded instrument's administrative, custodian, investment
manager or adviser.

Potential Adjustment Events relating to ETI Linked Notes

In the case of ETI Linked Notes, following the declaration by the relevant exchange traded instrument
or any person appointed to provide services directly or indirectly in respect of such exchange traded
instrument, as the case may be, of the terms of any Potential Adjustment Event, the Calculation Agent
will, in its sole and absolute discretion, determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has a
diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the ETI Interests and, if so, will (i) make the
corresponding adjustment, if any, to any one or more of any Relevant Asset and/or the Entitlement
(where the Notes are Physical Delivery Notes) and/or the Weighting and/or any of the other terms of
the Terms and Conditions and/or the applicable Final Terms as the Calculation Agent in its sole and
absolute discretion determines appropriate to account for that diluting or concentrative effect
(provided that no adjustments will be made to account solely for changes in volatility, expected
dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relative to the relevant ETI Interest) and (ii) determine the
effective date of that adjustment. The Calculation Agent may, but need not, determine the appropriate
adjustment by reference to the adjustment in respect of such Potential Adjustment Event made by an
options exchange to options on the ETI Interest traded on that options exchange.

Extraordinary Events relating to ETI Linked Notes

In the case of ETI Linked Notes if certain events ("Extraordinary ETI Events") including events
relating to Global Events, Litigation/Fraudulent Activity Events, Change in Related Parties/Key
Persons Events, Modification Events, Net Asset Value/Investment/AUM Level Events,
Tax/Law/Accounting/Regulatory  Events, Hedging/Impracticality/Increased Costs Events and
Miscellaneous Events in the determination of the Calculation Agent occur, the Issuer may, in its sole
and absolute discretion, take no action, adjust the terms of the Notes to reflect such event, substitute
the relevant ETI Interests or redeem the Notes.

50



Consequently, the occurrence of an Extraordinary ETI Event may have an adverse effect on the value
or liquidity of the ETI Linked Notes.

The Issuer will exercise its rights under the ETI Linked Conditions, including in particular the action it
takes on the occurrence of an Extraordinary ETI Event, in its sole and absolute discretion. Subject to
all regulatory obligations, none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or the Calculation Agent
owes any duty or responsibility to any of the holders of the ETI Linked Notes. The exercise of such
rights in such manner may result in an increased loss in performance of the ETI Linked Notes than if
the Issuer had taken different action.

Certain Considerations Associated with Fund Linked Notes

Where the Issuer issues Fund Linked Notes linked to one or more Funds, including Hedge Funds,
Mutual Funds or Private Equity Funds, the relevant Notes reflect the performance of such fund(s).

Funds may trade and invest in a broad range of investments and financial instruments using
sophisticated investment techniques for hedging and non-hedging purposes such as debt and equity
securities, commodities or commodity indices and foreign exchange and may enter into derivative
transactions, including, without limitation, futures, swaps and options. Such financial instruments and
investment techniques may also include, but are not limited to, the use of leverage, short sales of
securities, transactions that involve the lending of securities to financial institutions, the entry into
repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements for securities and the investment in foreign securities
and foreign currencies. While these investment strategies and financial instruments provide the
investment manager and/or adviser of a Fund the flexibility to implement a range of strategies in an
attempt to generate positive returns for the Fund, they also create the risk of significant losses that
may adversely affect the value of the Fund and therefore the return on the Fund Linked Notes.
Potential investors should be aware that none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or the
Calculation Agent have any control over investments made by a Fund and therefore in no way
guarantee the performance of a Fund and therefore the amount due to Noteholders on redemption of
the Fund Linked Notes. Funds may often be illiquid and may only be traded on a monthly, quarterly
or even less frequent basis. The trading strategies of Funds are often opaque. Funds, as well as the
markets and instruments in which they invest, are often not subject to review by governmental
authorities, self-regulatory organisations or other supervisory authorities.

The amount payable on Fund Linked Notes will be dependent on the performance of the relevant
Fund(s) underlying the Fund Linked Notes, which may be linked to the reported Net Asset Value per
Fund Share and/or the actual redemption proceeds the Hedge Provider or a hypothetical investor in
the relevant Fund(s) would receive. The amount payable on the Fund Linked Notes may be less than
the amount payable from a direct investment in the relevant Fund(s). In certain circumstances, a Fund
may continue reporting a Net Asset Value per Fund Share, but the Hedge Provider or a hypothetical
investor may not be able to realise their investment in the relevant Fund(s) at such reported Net Asset
Value per Fund Share. In such a case, the return on the Fund Linked Notes may be less and in
certain circumstances may be significantly less than the reported performance of the relevant Fund(s)
and may be zero.

A Fund may be established as part of a master-feeder fund structure. Generally, a master-feeder fund
structure involves the incorporation of a "master" fund company into which separate and distinct
"feeder" funds invest. Active management of any investment strategy is, generally, performed at the
master fund level. In instances where the Fund(s) underlying the relevant Fund Linked Notes are
"feeder" funds, the Extraordinary Fund Events (see below) extend to include the "master" fund and its
service providers. In conducting their own due diligence of the relevant Fund(s), prospective investors
should pay particular attention to whether the relevant Fund(s) are established as part of a master-
feeder fund structure.

In hedging the Issuer’s obligations under the Fund Linked Notes, the Hedge Provider is not restricted
to any particular hedging practice. Accordingly, the Hedge Provider may hedge its exposure using any
method it, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate, including, but not limited to, investing in the
relevant Fund(s), replicating the performance of the relevant Fund(s) or holding any of the assets
underlying the relevant Fund(s). The Hedge Provider may perform any number of different hedging
practices in respect to Fund Linked Notes.
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For all the above reasons, investing directly or indirectly in Funds is generally considered to be risky.
If the underlying Fund does not perform sufficiently well, the value of the Notes will fall, and may in
certain circumstances be zero.

Extraordinary Events relating to Fund Linked Notes

In the case of Fund Linked Notes if certain events ("Extraordinary Fund Events") including events
relating to Global Events, Litigation/Fraudulent Activity Events, Fund Service Provider/Key Person
Events, Modification Events, Net Asset Value per Fund Share/AUM Level Events, Reporting Events,
Tax/Law/Accounting/Regulatory Events, Hedging/Impracticality/Increased Costs Events, Dealing
Events and Miscellaneous Events in the determination of the Calculation Agent occur, the Issuer may,
in its sole and absolute discretion, take no action, adjust the terms of the Notes to reflect such event,
substitute the relevant Fund Shares or redeem the Notes.

Consequently the occurrence of an Extraordinary Fund Event may have an adverse effect on the
value or liquidity of the Notes.

In addition, in the event that redemption proceeds in respect of the underlying Fund Shares are not
received by the Hedge Provider on or prior to the scheduled date for redemption, such redemption
date may be postponed for a period of up to two calendar years (or such other period as may be
specified in the applicable Final Terms) and no additional amount shall be payable as a result of such
delay.

The Issuer will exercise its rights under the Fund Linked Notes, including in particular the action it
takes on the occurrence of an Extraordinary Fund Event, in its sole and absolute discretion. Subject to
all regulatory obligations, none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or the Calculation Agent
owes any duty or responsibility to any of the holders of the Fund Linked Notes. The exercise of such
rights in such manner may result in an increased loss in performance of the Fund Notes than if the
Issuer had taken different action.

Certain Considerations Associated with Notes Linked to Emerging Markets

The Issuers may issue Notes where the amount payable on redemption or the interest payable is
linked to Underlying References which consist of (i) securities, funds or indices comprising securities
of issuers that are located in, or subject to regulation in, emerging or developing countries, or (ii)
securities which are denominated in the currency of, or are traded in, emerging or developing
countries or (iii) currencies of emerging or developing countries. Prospective investors should note
that additional risks may be associated with investment in such Notes, including risks associated with
political and economic uncertainty, adverse governmental policies, restrictions on foreign investment
and currency convertibility, currency exchange rate fluctuations, possible lower levels of disclosure
and regulation, and uncertainties as to the status, interpretation and application of laws including, but
not limited to, those relating to expropriation, nationalisation and confiscation. Notes traded in
emerging or developing countries tend to be less liquid and the prices of such securities more volatile.
In addition, settlement of trades in some such markets may be slower and more subject to failure than
in markets in developed countries.

Increased custodian costs as well as administrative difficulties (such as the applicability of the laws of
the jurisdictions of emerging or developing countries to custodians in such jurisdictions in various
circumstances, including bankruptcy, ability to recover lost assets, expropriation, nationalisation and
record access) may also arise from the maintenance of assets in such emerging or developing
countries.

Prospective purchasers of such Notes should also be aware that the probability of the occurrence of a
disruption event and consequently loss of investment or profit by an investor may be higher for certain
developing or emerging markets. Prospective purchasers are expected to conduct their own
enquiries and be satisfied that there are additional risks associated with investments linked to the
performance of underlying assets located in these markets.

Certain Considerations Associated with Dynamic Notes

The Issuers may issue dynamic Notes ("Dynamic Notes"). Dynamic Notes may be linked to a
portfolio or strategy often comprising assets with a greater potential for return and consequently
greater risk (e.g. a Hedge Fund) and assets with a lower return and consequently lesser risk (e.g. a
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zero coupon debt security issued by an issuer with a high credit rating). The portfolio or strategy may
include leverage on certain specified terms. The portfolio or strategy is dynamic and may rebalance
between the relevant assets based upon a specified allocation methodology. The value of Dynamic
Notes is determined by reference to the underlying portfolio or strategy. This portfolio or strategy may
change during the term of the Notes which may affect the value of, and any return on, the Notes.

Considering the above aspects, Dynamic Notes are by their nature intrinsically complex, which makes
their evaluation difficult, in terms of risk at the time of the purchase as well as thereafter. Investors
should therefore purchase Dynamic Notes only after having completely understood and evaluated
either themselves or with a financial adviser the nature and the risk inherent in the Dynamic Notes.

Limited Exposure to Underlying Reference

If the applicable Final Terms provide that the exposure of any Underlying Reference Linked Notes to
one or more Underlying References is limited or capped to a certain level or amount, such Notes will
not benefit from any upside in the value of any such Underlying References beyond such limit or cap.

The Amount Payable on Redemption may be Significantly Less than the Value of an Investment in the
Notes

Each Noteholder may receive an amount on redemption and/or physical delivery of securities together
with cash for roundings in respect of any Underlying Reference Linked Notes. The amount payable on
redemption and/or the aggregate value of securities physically delivered and cash may be
significantly less than the value of the Noteholder's investment in such Notes. In particular, in the case
of any such Notes exposed to the performance of a basket of Underlying References, the securities
so delivered may relate to or, the cash redemption amount may be calculated by reference to, the
worst performing Underlying Reference or any other formula specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events

If an Additional Disruption Event or any Optional Additional Disruption Event specified in the
applicable Final Terms occurs, the Notes may be subject to adjustment or redemption. The Additional
Disruption Events relate to changes in law (including changes in tax or regulatory capital
requirements) and hedging disruption in respect of any hedging transactions relating to the Notes
(both as more fully set out in the Conditions). Optional Additional Disruption Events relate to force
majeure, increased cost of any hedging transactions or stock borrowings or loss of any stock
borrowings in respect of the Notes, insolvency filing in respect of an equity issuer or stop-loss event in
respect of an equity security (all as fully set out in the Conditions).

Physical Delivery Notes

In the case of Notes which are redeemable by delivery of assets (other than Credit Linked Notes), if a
Settlement Disruption Event occurs or exists on the due date for redemption of the Notes, settlement
will be postponed until the next Settlement Business Day in respect of which there is no Settlement
Disruption Event. The Issuer in these circumstances also has the right to pay the Disruption Cash
Redemption Amount in lieu of delivering the Entitlement.

If a Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity occurs the relevant Issuer has the right in lieu of delivery of the
assets affected by such event pay the Failure to Deliver Redemption Amount. The Disruption Cash
Redemption Amount and/or the Failure to Deliver Redemption Amount may be less than the fair
market value of the Entitlement.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Document should be read and construed in conjunction with the following documents which have
been previously published or are published simultaneously with this Document and that have been
filed with the AMF for the purpose of the Prospectus Directive and the relevant implementing
measures in France, and shall be incorporated in, and form part of, this Document:

(@)

(e)

(f)

(9)

the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the debt issuance prospectus of BNPP
dated 30 June 2005 (the "2005 EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes
contained in the base prospectus of BNPP dated 21 June 2006 (the "2006 EMTN
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the base prospectus of
BNPP dated 30 May 2007 (the "2007 EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the
Notes contained in the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 30 May 2008 (the
"2008 EMTN Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the base
prospectus of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 29 May 2009 (the "2009 EMTN Conditions") and
the terms and conditions of the Notes contained in the base prospectus of BNPP and BNPP
B.V. dated 3 June 2010 (the "2010 EMTN Conditions") and together with the 2005 EMTN
Conditions, the 2006 EMTN Conditions, the 2007 EMTN Conditions, the 2008 EMTN
Conditions, the 2009 EMTN Conditions and the "EMTN Previous Conditions");

the information statement relating to BNPP, dated 7 June 2011 (the "Information
Statement");

the audited consolidated financial statements of BNP Paribas as at, and for the years ended,
31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010 (the "BNPP 2009 Financial Statements" and the
"BNPP 2010 Financial Statements" respectively), together with the respective statutory
auditors' reports thereon, as contained, respectively, in BNPP's document de référence in
English for 2009 (the "2009 Registration Document") and BNPP's document de référence in
English for 2010 (the "2010 Registration Document");

chapter 5 (entitled "Pillar 3") of the 2009 Registration Document and the 2010 Registration
Document;

the complement to the financial statements of BNP Paribas as at, and for the year ended, 31
December 2009 as contained in Chapter 5 of BNPP's Actualisation du document de reference
déposée auprés de 'AMF le 11 mai 2010 in English (the "First Update to the 2009
Registration Document");

the supplement to the consolidated financial statements of BNP Paribas as at, and for the
year ended, 31 December 2010 as contained in Chapter 3 of BNPP's Actualisation du
document de référence déposée auprés de 'AMF le 6 mai 2011 in English (the "First Update
to the 2010 Registration Document"); and

the audited annual non-consolidated financial statements of BNPP B.V. as at, and for the two
years ended, 31 December 2009 and 31 December 2010 (the "BNPP B.V. 2009 Financial
Statements" and the "BNPP B.V. 2010 Financial Statements" respectively), such financial
statements, and the respective auditors' reports thereon, being available as part of the
respective statutory annual report for 2009 (the "2009 BNPP B.V. Annual Report") and for
2010 (the "2010 BNPP B.V. Annual Report"),

save that any statement contained herein or in a document which is incorporated by reference herein
shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Document to the extent that
such statement is inconsistent with a statement contained in this Document.

The information incorporated by reference above is available as follows:

Information Incorporated by Reference Reference

BNP PARIBAS
EMTN Previous Conditions

2005 EMTN Conditions Pages 28 to 56
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Information Incorporated by Reference

Reference

2006 EMTN Conditions

Pages 37 to 109

2007 EMTN Conditions

Pages 37 to 116

2008 EMTN Conditions

Pages 43 to 179

2009 EMTN Conditions

Pages 51 to 90

2010 EMTN Conditions

Pages 56 to 95

BNP Paribas Information Statement

Risk Factors

Pages 5 to 10 of the Information Statement

Selected Financial Data

Pages 11 to 12 of the Information Statement

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Results of
Operations and Financial Condition

Pages 17 to 63 of the Information Statement

Recent Developments including the Issuer's 1st
quarter results for the 3 month period ended 31
March 2011

Pages 64 to 76 of the Information Statement

Business of the Group

Pages 77 to 97 of the Information Statement

Risk Management

Pages 98 to 141 of the Information Statement

Governmental Supervision and Regulation of BNP
Paribas in France

Pages 142 to 145 of the Information Statement

Capital Adequacy of the BNP Paribas Group

Pages 146 to 149 of the Information Statement

Management of the Bank

Pages 150 to 154 of the Information Statement

Independent Statutory Auditors

Page 155 of the Information Statement

2009 Registration

Document

BNPP 2009 Financial Statements

Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31
December 2009

Page 106 of the 2009 Registration Document

Statement of net income and changes in fair value of
assets and liabilities

Page 107 of the 2009 Registration Document

Balance sheet at 31 December 2009

Page 108 of the 2009 Registration Document

Statement of changes in shareholders'
equity between 1 January 2008 and 31 December
2009

Pages 109 to 110 of the 2009 Registration
Document

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31
December 2009

Page 111 of the 2009 Registration Document

Notes to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with international financial reporting
standards as adopted by the European Union

Pages 112 to 243 of the 2009 Registration
Document

Statutory Auditors' Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of BNP Paribas for the year
ended 31 December 2009

Pages 244 to 246 of the 2009 Registration
Document

Chapter 5 ("Pillar3")

Pages 247 to 280 of the 2009 Registration
Document

First Update to the 2009 Registration Document
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Information Incorporated by Reference

Reference

Complement to the financial statements of BNP
Paribas

Pages 64 to 66 of the First Update to the 2009
Registration Document

2010 Registratio

n Document

BNPP 2010 Financial Statements

Profit and Loss account for the year ended 31
December 2010

Page 104 of the 2010 Registration Document

Statement of net income and changes in assets and
liabilities recognised directly in equity

Page 105 of the 2010 Registration Document

Balance sheet at 31 December 2010

Page 106 of the 2010 Registration Document

Cash Flows statement for the year ended 31
December 2010

Page 107 of the 2010 Registration Document

Statement of changes in shareholders'
equity between 1 January 2009 and 31 December
2010

Pages 108 to 109 of the 2010 Registration
Document

Notes to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with international financial reporting
standards as adopted by the European Union

Pages 110 to 253 of the 2010 Registration
Document

Statutory Auditors' Report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of BNP Paribas for the year
ended 31 December 2010

Pages 254 to 255 of the 2010 Registration
Document

Chapter 5 ("Pillar 3")

Pages 257 to 296 of the 2010 Registration
Document

First Update to the 2010 Registration Document

Supplement to the Consolidated Financial Statements
of BNPP ended 31 December 2010

Pages 60 to 61 of the First Update to the 2010
Registration Document

BNP PARIBAS ARBITRAGE ISSUANCE B.V.

BNPP B.V. 2009 Financial Statements

Balance Sheet

Page 5 of the 2009 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Profit & Loss Account

Page 6 of the 2009 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Cashflow Statement

Page 7 of the 2009 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Appendices/Notes

Pages 8 to 14 of the 2009 BNPP B.V. Annual
Report

Auditor's Report of the Financial Statements
of BNPP B.V. for the year ended 31 December 2009

Pages 15 to 16 of the 2009 BNPP B.V. Annual
Report

BNPP B.V. 2010 Financial Statements

Managing Director's Report

Pages 3 to 4 of the 2010 BNPP B.V. Annual
Report

Balance Sheet

Page 5 of the 2010 BNPP B.V. Annual Report
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Profit & Loss Account Page 6 of the 2010 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Cashflow Statement Page 7 of the 2010 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Appendices/Notes Pages 8 to 14 of the 2010 BNPP B.V. Annual
Report

Auditor's Report of the Financial Statements Pages 15 to 16 of the 2010 BNPP B.V. Annual

of BNPP B.V. for the year ended 31 December 2009 | Report

Information contained in the documents incorporated by reference other than information listed in the
tables above is for information purposes only.

Each Issuer will provide, free of charge, to each person to whom a copy of this Document has been
delivered, upon the oral or written request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents which
are incorporated herein by reference. Written or oral requests for such documents should be directed
to the relevant Issuer at its principal office set out at the end of this Document. In addition, copies of
any documents incorporated by reference will be made available free of charge from the specified
office of the Principal Paying Agent, and will, along with this Base Prospectus, be available for viewing
on the website of the AMF (www.amf-france.org).

BNPP B.V. and BNPP have given an undertaking in connection with the listing of the Notes on
Euronext Paris to the effect that, so long as any Note remains outstanding and listed on such
Exchange, in the event of any adverse change in the condition of the relevant Issuer or, where the
relevant Issuer is BNPP B.V., the Guarantor, which is material in the context of the Programme and
which is not reflected in this Document, it will prepare a further supplement to this Document or
publish a new base prospectus for use in connection with any subsequent issue of Notes to be listed
on Euronext Paris. If the terms of the Programme are modified or amended in a manner which would
make this Document, as supplemented, inaccurate or misleading, a new base prospectus will be
prepared.

In relation to any issue of Notes, the applicable Final Terms should be read in conjunction with this
Document.
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GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

The following overview does not purport to be complete and is qualified by the Summary and the
remainder of this Document and, in relation to the terms and conditions of any particular Series (as
defined below in "Terms and Conditions of the Notes") of Notes, the applicable Final Terms. Subject
as provided in the Terms and Conditions of the Notes, any of the following (including, without
limitation, the type of Notes which may be issued pursuant to the Programme) may be varied or
supplemented as agreed between the Issuer, the relevant Dealer(s) and the Principal Paying Agent (if
applicable). Words and expressions defined in "Form of the Notes" and the "Terms and Conditions of
the Notes" shall have the same meaning in this overview:

Issuers

Guarantor (in the case of Notes
issued by BNPP B.V.)

Arranger

Dealers (in the case of Notes issued
by BNPP)

Dealer (in the case of Notes issued
by BNPP B.V.)

Legal and regulatory requirements

Issue Method

Principal Paying Agent
Registrar

Programme Amount

BNP Paribas ("BNPP" or the "Bank" and, together with its
consolidated subsidiaries, the "Group")

BNP Paribas Arbitrage Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V.")
BNP Paribas

BNP Paribas
Barclays Bank PLC

BNP Paribas UK Limited

Citigroup Global Markets Limited

Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited
Goldman Sachs International

J.P. Morgan Securities Ltd.

Merrill Lynch International

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc
UBS Limited

BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.

Notes may also be issued to third parties other than
Dealers on the basis of enquiries made by such third
parties to the Issuer, including Dealers appointed in relation
to issues of Notes denominated in particular currencies in
compliance with applicable regulations and guidelines from
time to time. Each issue of Notes denominated in a
currency in respect of which particular laws, guidelines,
regulations, restrictions or reporting requirements apply will
only be issued in circumstances which comply with such
laws, guidelines, regulations, restrictions or reporting
requirements from time to time (see "Subscription and Sale"
below) including the following restrictions applicable at the
date of this Document.

Notes may be issued on a syndicated or non-syndicated
basis. The Notes will be issued in Series having one or
more issue dates and on terms otherwise identical within
the same Series. Each Series may be issued in Tranches
on the same or different issue dates. The specific terms of
each Tranche will be set out in the relevant Final Terms.

BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch
BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch

€90,000,000,000 (or its equivalent in other currencies
calculated on the Agreement Date) outstanding at any one
time. As provided in the Programme Agreement the
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Description

Currencies

Redenomination

Maturities

Issue Price

Form of Notes

nominal amount of Notes outstanding under the
Programme may be further increased.

Programme for the Issuance of Debt Instruments.

Notes may be denominated in any currency or currencies
agreed between the Issuer and the Dealer(s), subject to
compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory
restrictions. Payments in respect of Notes may, subject to
compliance as aforesaid, be made in and/or linked to, any
currency or currencies other than the currency in which
such Notes are denominated.

The applicable Final Terms may provide that certain Notes
may be redenominated in euro.

Any maturity in excess of one day (except in the case of
Subordinated Notes when the minimum maturity will be five
years or, in any case, such other minimum maturity as may
be required from time to time by the relevant monetary
authority). No maximum maturity is contemplated and
Notes may be issued with no specified maturity dates
provided, however, that Notes will only be issued in
compliance with all applicable legal and/or regulatory
requirements.

Notes may be issued at par or at a discount to, or premium
over, par and either on a fully paid or partly paid basis.

Notes will be issued in either bearer form or registered form
outside the United States to non-U.S. persons in
transactions not subject to the registration requirements of
the Securities Act pursuant to Regulation S under the
Securities Act. Bearer Notes will initially be represented by
one or more Temporary Global Notes which:

(a) if the Global Notes are intended to be issued in a
new global note ("NGN") form, as stated in the
applicable Final Terms, will be delivered on or prior
to the original issue date of the Tranche to a
common safekeeper (the "Common Safekeeper")
for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg; and

(b) if the Global Notes are not intended to be issued in
NGN form,

will be deposited with a depositary or, as the case may be,
common depositary for Euroclear and Clearstream,
Luxembourg or any other agreed clearing system (including
Euroclear France (as defined herein)) and which will be
exchanged for one or more Permanent Global Notes or for
definitive Bearer Notes (as indicated in the applicable Final
Terms and subject, in the case of definitive Bearer Notes, to
such notice period (if any) as is specified in the applicable
Final Terms) in each case not earlier than the Exchange
Date (as defined in "Form of the Notes" below) upon
certification of non-U.S. beneficial ownership. A Permanent
Global Note may be exchanged in whole (but not in part) for
definitive Bearer Notes only in the limited circumstances
described in "Form of the Notes" below except where the
applicable Final Terms and Permanent Global Note specify
that definitive Bearer Notes shall be available upon request
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Fixed Rate Notes

Floating Rate Notes

(notwithstanding the absence of such limited
circumstances). Interests in a Temporary Global Note or
Permanent Global Note will be transferable in accordance
with the rules and procedures for the time being of
Euroclear, Clearstream, Luxembourg, or any other agreed
clearing system (including Euroclear France (as defined
herein)).

One or more Registered Global Notes which will be
delivered to a common depositary for Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg for, and registered in the name
of, a nominee of a common depositary for Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg. Registered Notes will not be
exchangeable for Bearer Notes and vice versa. A
Registered Global Note will be exchangeable for definitive
Registered Notes in certain limited circumstances specified
in "Form of the Notes" below.

Fixed rate interest will be payable on such day(s) as
specified in the applicable Final Terms and on redemption.

Interest will be calculated on the basis of such Day Count
Fraction as may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and
the relevant Dealer(s) and specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

Floating Rate Notes will bear interest calculated:

(a) on the same basis as the floating rate under a
notional interest rate swap transaction in the
relevant Specified Currency governed by an
agreement in the form of either (i) an agreement
incorporating the 2006 ISDA Definitions (as
published by the International Swaps and
Derivatives Association Inc. and as amended and
updated as at the Issue Date of the first Tranche of
the Notes of the relevant Series) or (ii) the Master
Agreement relating to foreign exchange and
derivative transactions published by the Association
Francaise des Banques/Fédération Bancaire
Francaise and evidenced by a Confirmation; or

(b) on the basis of a reference rate appearing on an
agreed screen page of a commercial quotation
service; or

(c) on such other basis as may be agreed in writing

between the relevant Issuer and the relevant
Dealer(s) (as indicated in the applicable Final
Terms).

Floating Rate Notes may also have a maximum interest
rate, a minimum interest rate or both.

Interest on Floating Rate Notes will be payable, and will be
calculated as specified prior to issue in the applicable Final
Terms.

The margin (if any) relating to such floating rate will be
agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant
Dealer(s) for each issue of Floating Rate Notes. Interest will
be calculated on the basis of such Day Count Fraction as
may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the

60



Index Linked Notes

Share Linked Notes

ETI Linked Notes

Inflation Linked Notes

relevant Dealer(s) and as specified in the applicable Final
Terms.

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and
whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Index Linked
Notes will be calculated by reference to one or more Indices
as are agreed between the Issuer and the relevant
Dealer(s) set out in the applicable Final Terms. Index
Linked Notes may be linked to, inter alia, an equity index or
a property index or a custom index established, calculated
and/or sponsored by BNPP and/or its affiliates.

Index Linked Notes may be subject to early redemption or
adjustment if an Index is modified or cancelled and there is
no successor index acceptable to the Calculation Agent, if
the Index's sponsor fails to calculate and announce the
Index, or certain events (such as illegality, disruptions or
cost increases) occur with respect to the Issuer's or any of
its affiliates' hedging arrangements.

If certain disruption events occur with respect to valuation of
an Index such valuation will be postponed and may be
made by the Calculation Agent. Payments may also be
postponed.

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and
whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Share Linked
Notes will be calculated by reference to one or more
shares, ADRs and/or GDRs (together referred to herein as
"Shares" and each a "Share") as agreed between the
Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) set out in the applicable
Final Terms. Share Linked Notes may also provide for
redemption by physical delivery of the Entitlement as more
fully set out under "Terms and Conditions of the Notes".

Share Linked Notes may be subject to early redemption or
adjustment (including as to valuation and in certain
circumstances Share substitutions) if certain corporate
events (such as events affecting the value of a Share
(including Share, or in the case of GDRs and ADRs,
Underlying Share, divisions or consolidations, extraordinary
dividends and capital calls); de-listing of a Share or
Underlying Share; insolvency, merger or nationalisation of a
Share or Underlying Share issuer; or a tender offer or
redenomination of a Share or Underlying Share) occur, if
certain events (such as illegality, disruptions or cost
increases) occur with respect to the Issuer's or any of its
affiliates’ hedging arrangements, or if insolvency filings are
made with respect to a Share or Underlying Share issuer.

Payments (whether in respect of principal and/or interest
and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of ETI
Linked Notes will be calculated by reference to interests in
one or more exchange traded instrument as agreed
between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer. ETI
Linked Notes may also provide settlement by physical
delivery of the Entitlement as more fully set out under
"Terms and Conditions".

Payments (whether in respect of principal and/or interest
and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Inflation
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Commodity Linked Notes

Fund Linked Notes

Credit Linked Notes

Linked Notes will be calculated by reference to one or more
inflation Indices as agreed between the relevant Issuer and
the relevant Dealer(s) set out in the applicable Final Terms.

Payments (whether in respect of principal and/or interest
and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of
Commodity Linked Notes will be calculated by reference to
one or more commodities and/or commodity indices as
agreed between the relevant Issuer and the relevant
Dealer(s) set out in the applicable Final Terms. Commodity
Linked Notes may also provide for redemption by physical
delivery of the Entitlement as more fully set out under
"Terms and Conditions of the Notes".

Commodity Linked Notes may be subject to adjustment
(including as to valuations) if certain events occur with
respect to a Commodity or Commodity Index (such as a
trading disruption the disappearance of, or disruption in
publication of, a reference price; and in certain
circumstances a change in the formula for calculating a
reference price; or a change in the content of a Commodity
or Commodity Index) or an index component disruption
event.

Payments (whether in respect of principal or interest and/or
whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Fund Linked
Notes will be calculated by reference to units, interests or
shares in a single fund or basket of funds on such terms as
may be agreed between the relevant Issuer and the
relevant Dealer(s) and specified in the applicable Final
Terms. Fund Linked Notes may also provide for
redemption by physical delivery of the Entitlement.

Fund Linked Notes may be subject to early redemption or
adjustment (including as to valuation and fund substitutions)
if certain corporate events (such as insolvency (or
analogous event) occurring with respect to a fund; litigation
against, or regulatory events occurring with respect to a
fund; suspensions of fund subscriptions or redemptions;
certain changes in net asset value of a fund; or
modifications to the investment objectives or changes in the
nature or administration of a fund) occur, if certain valuation
or settlement disruption events occur with respect to a fund,
or if certain events (such as illegality, disruptions or cost
increases) occur with respect to the Issuer's or any of its
affiliates' hedging arrangements.

Notes with respect to which payment of principal and
interest is linked to the credit of a specified entity or entities
will be issued on such terms as may be agreed between the
relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) and specified in
the applicable Final Terms.

If Conditions to Settlement are satisfied during the Notice
Delivery Period, each Note will be redeemed by the
payment of the Credit Event Redemption Amount, if Cash
Settlement is specified in the applicable Final Terms, or by
Delivery of the Deliverable Obligations comprising the
Entitlement, if Physical Delivery is specified in the
applicable Final Terms, as more fully set out under "Terms
and Conditions of the Notes".
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Foreign Exchange (FX) Rate Linked
Notes

Hybrid Notes

Zero Coupon Notes

Other Notes

Redemption and Purchase

Denominations of Notes

Payments (whether in respect of principal and/or interest
and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Foreign
Exchange (FX) Rate Linked Notes will be calculated by
reference to one or more foreign exchange rates as agreed
between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) set
out in the applicable Final Terms.

Payments (whether in respect of principal and/or interest
and whether at maturity or otherwise) in respect of Hybrid
Notes will be calculated by reference to any combination of
Underlying References as agreed between the Issuer and
the relevant Dealer(s) as set out in the applicable Final
Terms.

Zero Coupon Notes will not bear interest other than in the
case of late payment.

Terms applicable to any other type of Note which the Issuer
and any Dealer or Dealers may agree from time to time to
issue under the Programme will be set out in the applicable
Final Terms.

The applicable Final Terms will indicate either that the
relevant Notes cannot be redeemed prior to their stated
maturity (other than in specified instalments, if applicable,
or for taxation reasons or following an Event of Default) or
that such Notes will be redeemable at the option of the
Issuer and/or the Noteholders upon giving notice to the
Noteholders or the Issuer, as the case may be, on a date or
dates specified prior to such stated maturity and at a price
or prices and on such other terms as may be agreed
between the relevant Issuer and the relevant Dealer(s) and
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Following an Event of Default, no part of Subordinated
Notes may be redeemed prior to five years (or in any case,
such other minimum period as may be required from time to
time by the relevant monetary authority) from the relevant
Issue Date and no part of any Notes denominated in any
other Specified Currency may be redeemed prior to such
other minimum time as may be required by the relevant
monetary authority.

Any early redemption of Subordinated Notes under
Condition 5(b) or (c) of the terms and conditions of the
relevant Notes will be subject to the prior approval of the
Secrétariat général de I'Autorité de Contr6le Prudentiel in
France.

Any early redemption or purchase (in the open market) by
BNPP of more than 10 per cent. of the nominal amount of
any issue of Subordinated Notes (either individually or
when aggregated with any previous redemption or
purchase) will be subject to the prior approval of the
Secrétariat général de I'Autorité de Contr6le Prudentiel in
France.

In the case of Subordinated Notes, no redemption of the
Notes at the option of the Noteholders is permitted.

Notes will be issued in such denominations as may be
specified in the applicable Final Terms save that:
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Taxation

(a) the minimum denomination of each Note admitted
to trading on a regulated market within the
European Economic Area or offered to the public in
a Member State of the European Economic Area in
circumstances which require that publication of a
prospectus will be €1,000 (or, if the Notes are
denominated in a currency other than euro, the
equivalent amount in such currency); and

(b) the minimum denomination of each Note will be
such as may be allowed or required from time to
time by the relevant central bank (or equivalent
body) or any laws or regulations applicable to the
relevant Specified Currency.

In the case of Notes issued by BNPP, all payments of
principal and interest and other revenues by or on behalf of
BNPP in respect of the Notes shall be made free and clear
of, and without withholding or deduction of, any taxes,
duties, assessments or governmental charges of whatever
nature imposed, levied, collected, withheld or assessed by
or on behalf of any Tax Jurisdiction, unless such
withholding or deduction is required by law.

In the event that any amounts are required to be deducted
or withheld for, or on behalf of any Tax Jurisdiction, BNPP
will have to gross-up its payments to the fullest extent then
permitted by law and subject to certain exceptions.

In the case of Notes issued by BNPP B.V. and guaranteed
by BNPP, if the applicable Final Terms specify that
Condition 6(b)(i) is applicable to the Notes, all payments in
respect of such Notes shall be made free and clear of, and
without withholding or deduction for or on account of, any
present or future taxes, duties, assessments or
governmental charges of whatever nature imposed, levied,
collected or assessed by or on behalf of any Tax
Jurisdiction, unless such withholding or deduction is
required by law. In the event that any amounts are required
to be deducted or withheld, the Issuer or, as the case may
be, the Guar